
Gloucestershire Schools Forum

Thursday 13 January 2022 at 2.00 pm

REMOTE MEETING

IMPORTANT NOTICE:
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY AND CAN BE

VIEWED VIA: WWW.GLOUCESTERSHIRE.GOV.UK





Gloucestershire Schools Forum
Thursday 13 January 2022

2.00 pm

REMOTE MEETING

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Joanne Bolton

2  ELECTION OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM VICE CHAIR 

To elect a Vice Chair of the Schools Forum.

Joanne Bolton

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Forum must declare an interest in any agenda item where 
the outcome may give them a direct pecuniary advantage or avoid a 
disadvantage.  

Joanne Bolton

4  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To receive any public questions.
 
Questions can be asked on the day or sent to the Clerk before the
meeting. If you would like to ask a question on the day of the meeting, 
please contact the Clerk Joanne Bolton (email: 
joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk) (Tel: 01452 324197), by 10:00am 
on Tuesday 11 January 2022, so that arrangements can be made as the 
meeting is being held remotely via video conferencing.
 
The Chair will advise the timescale for any questions asked on the day of 
the meeting or received less than 3 working days before the meeting. A 
written answer will be provided if questions are received 3 clear working 
days before the date of the meeting.

Joanne Bolton

5  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 18)

To agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on 11 November 2021 
and note actions.

Notes of the meeting on the proposed changes to the School Improvement 
Grant, held on 9 December 2021, attached for information.

Joanne Bolton

6  GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL BUDGET CONSULTATION 
2022/23 (Pages 19 - 30)

Suzanne Hall

7  DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT 2022/23 (Pages 31 - 40) Philip Haslett, 
Neil Egles, 
Suzanne Hall

8  HIGH NEEDS (Pages 41 - 114) Philip Haslett



9  SCHOOLS FORUM WORKPLAN 2022 (Pages 115 - 118) Philip Haslett

10  F40 AND COVID-19 UPDATE Philip Haslett

11  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Schools Forum will take place on Wednesday 30 
March 2022 at 2:00pm.  

Joanne Bolton

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

1. In the event of the Forum not being able to complete the meeting, the Forum will
reconvene at 2:00 pm on Friday 14 January 2022.

2. Members of the public will be able to view the Schools Forum meeting via
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

3. The recorded meeting will be posted on the Gloucestershire County Council website as 
soon as possible following the meeting.

4. If you have any general queries about the meeting, please contact the Clerk: Joanne 
Bolton (email: joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk) (Tel: 01452 324197).

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/
mailto:joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk


1

GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM
Minutes of a meeting held on Thursday 11 November 2021

The meeting was held remotely.

Present:

Alison Berry - Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Lyn Dance - Special School Head Teacher
Stephen Dean - Primary School Headteachers (Academy)
Anne-Marie Delrosa - Secondary School Governors (Maintained)
Elisa Entwistle - Alternative Provision Schools
Andrew Harris - Community Representative (Chair of the Forum)
Kate Hawkins - Special School Governors (Academy)
Amanda Horniman - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Rachel Howie - Gloucester Diocese
Lisa Jones - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Becky Martin - Special School Governors (Maintained)
Julia Maunder - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Dermot McNiffe - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Sarah Murphy - Unions
Alexander Norman - Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Poppy Scott Plummer - Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Clare Steel - Special School Headteachers (Maintained)

Substitutes:
Andrew Stafford 
Laine Lewis 

- Primary School Governors (Maintained)
- Gloucestershire Parent Carer Forum

Observers: Cllr Philip Robinson - Cabinet Member for Economy, Education and
Skills
Cllr Stephen Davies - Cabinet Member for Children’s Safeguarding
and Early Years.

Officers: Kirsten Harrison, Director of Education
Chris Spencer, Director of Children’s Services
Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development
Neil Egles, Finance Manager, Schools Strategy and Capital
Suzanne Hall, Finance Business Partner, Strategic Finance
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser and Clerk to the
Schools Forum

Apologies: David Alexander, Secondary Headteacher (Maintained)
Matthew Bishop, Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Helen Bond, Gloucestershire Parent Carer Forum

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

2 

Penny Chislett, Post-16 Education
Rhian Evans, Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Elaine Le Gros, Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Peter Hales, Primary School Governors (Academy)
Becky Poulter Jewson, Early Years
Gwyneth Keen, Early Years Providers
Will Morgan, Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

29. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions had been received.

30. MINUTES 

30.1 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 September 2021, were approved 
as a correct record subject to the membership details for Dermot McNiffe in the 
attendance list being corrected to read: ‘Secondary (Academy) Headteachers’.

30.2 The Forum noted the progress against the actions from the previous meeting as 
outlined in the Action Sheet.  

30.3 At the September Forum meeting it was noted that schools were losing out on 
income due to changes in the way Pupil Premium was being calculated. The 
concern was that the additional Covid-19 recovery funding being allocated to 
schools was not covering this loss to their budgets.  The Head of Education 
Strategy and Development explained that analysis on the impact showed lost 
income from changes to the Pupil Premium census date totalled £1,400,370.  This 
was a £1,213,190 loss for primary schools and £187,190 for secondary schools. 
Covid recovery premium funding in 2020/21 for secondary schools totalled 
£931,047 and £1,313,045 for primary schools.  Therefore primary schools were 
disproportionately impacted by the change in the Pupil Premium funding which was 
offsetting the additional funding received for recovery.   

30.4 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that the Home to 
School Transport budget was increasingly under significant pressure.  He would 
provide details on the costs for children travelling to special schools in the county 
and independent special schools out of county, at the 13 January 2022 Forum 
meeting.
ACTION: Head of Education Strategy and Development.

31. COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

3 

31.1 The Forum received an update on the key messages coming out of the 
government’s Comprehensive Spending Review 2021 in relation to Education.

31.2 For Early Years and Family Support, there would be additional funding for the early 
years entitlements worth £160M in 2022-23, £180M in 2023-24 and £170M in 2024-
25. A total of £302M to fund new programmes to support parents, provide bespoke 
breast-feeding services and parent-infant mental support, and funding to rollout 
Family Hubs across England. 

31.3 It was reported that for the core schools’ budget there would be an additional £4.7 
billion by 2024-25. In response to a question, the Head of Education Strategy and 
Development explained that this closely aligned with the 2019 spending review 
figure of £7.1 billion over three years, and should therefore result in a similar 
percentage increase to the Per Pupil funding levels continuing for schools, like 
those seen over the last 3 years.  However, schools would need to consider the 
cost of the National Insurance Levy from April 2022, and the commitment to 
increase teacher starting salaries to £30k (announced in 2016).  

31.4 In response to a further question, he clarified that there were no further details on 
whether the Per Pupil funding, by remaining at a similar level, would mean a 
redirection of funding into the additional needs aspects.  He added that any action 
to direct funding to support children with additional needs would be linked to the 
outcomes of the government’s SEND review, which was due to be published 
imminently.

31.5 For Post-16 and Youth Services there would be an additional £1.6 billion by 2024-
25 for 16-19 year-olds.   Current funding rates would be maintained as student 
numbers grew.  An additional 110,000 students were anticipated by 2024/25. The 
capital settlement for SR 21 included £2.8 billion for colleges condition funding and 
funding for improved facilities (including continued roll out of T-Levels) and to 
establish 20 new Institutes of Technology.  A total of £560M new funding had been 
announced for youth services in England over the next three years, enough to fund 
300 youth clubs. 

31.6 The Forum noted that a total of £2.6 billion had been allocated to fund places for 
children and young people with SEND.  The Head of Education Strategy and 
Development reported that initial indications from the ESFA were that this funding 
would be allocated to the new free school and academies programme.  The 
Education Building and Development Officers Group (a national group made up of 
local authority officers and property professionals who are responsible for effective 
asset manager of school premises within their own LA), was engaging with the 
ESFA’s policy team, and requesting greater flexibility to enable the funding to be 
used to enhance existing specialist provision in local areas. This was on the basis 
that the process for free school bids could take up to 3 years to complete, and there 
was a risk that the bids may not even be successful.

31.7 In education recovery there would be a £1 billion extension to the Recovery 
Premium for the next two academic years to help schools to deliver evidence-based 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

4 

approaches to support the most disadvantaged pupils.  The Head of Education 
Strategy and Development reported that schools in Gloucestershire could expect 
that the recovery funding levels they were currently receiving would continue for at 
least the next two years.  However, if there were any significant changes to Pupil 
Premium numbers this would have an affect on the level of recovery funding being 
received as the funding was calculated on Pupil Premium census data.  A total of 
£800 million had been announced for 16-19 year-olds, with the expectation that this 
would fund 40 additional hours per student per week.

31.8 The Director of Children’s Services reported that Gloucestershire represented 1% 
of the national population of children; consequently this could be interpreted locally 
as Gloucestershire broadly receiving 1% of those headline figures.   Initial 
indications were that this would be a good settlement for Gloucestershire. He 
referred to the national £1.7 billion levelling up fund, and commented that he hoped 
that Gloucestershire would receive a share of the funding which could then be 
directed at enhancing schools serving the more deprived areas in the county, in 
recognition that education was an effective way out of poverty.

31.9 In response to a question, it was explained that further details on the funding for 
Gloucestershire’s schools core budgets in the financial year 2023/24, would be 
reported at the September 2022 Forum meeting.  

31.10 The Head of Education Strategy and Development agreed to circulate to Forum 
members, further details on the funding announcements, once they became 
available.
ACTION: Head of Education Strategy and Development.

32. CONSULTATION ON SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT GRANT FUNDING 

32.1 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that the government 
was consulting local authorities on proposed changes to how LA’s school 
improvement actives were funded.  The government was proposing to remove the 
grant and enable all improvement activity, including that provided in connection with 
core improvement activities, to be funded in the same way via de-delegation from 
schools’ budget shares.  The rationale behind the proposal was that local 
authorities rarely needed to utilise intervention powers, many historically poorer 
performing schools were now academies, and core improvement activities were 
part of a continuum of wider activity. 

32.2 He reported that the impact of the removal of this grant in Gloucestershire would be 
a loss of income totalling circa £720k by 2023/24.  A reduction of 50% would be 
seen in 2022/23.  The government was proposing to change the regulations to 
allow all LA School Improvement activities to be funded through de-delegation, with 
the agreement of the local schools forum or the Secretary of State.

32.3 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that in terms of next 
steps, the LA would assess the impact of the proposed changes and work with 
Forum members representing maintained schools to model potential options for 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

5 

School Improvement funding.  Consultation/engagement would take place with all 
maintained schools, (Primary, Secondary, Alternative Provision and Special) to 
consider options, and to also produce a response to the government’s consultation. 
He stressed that the consultation was focused on the pace of the removal of the 
grant, rather than whether the grant should or should not be removed.

32.4 The Head of Education Development and Strategy emphasised that decisions on 
de-delegations for School Improvement funding would involve the Forum members 
representing maintained schools across the school sector (i.e. Special, Alternative 
Provision, Primary, and Secondary). 

32.5 In response to a question, the Head of Education Strategy and Development 
confirmed that Gloucestershire rarely needed to utilise the intervention powers.  
LAs were working hard not to get into the position of having to use the intervention 
powers with schools that were causing concern.  The Director of Children’s 
Services added that using this statutory power of direction was always an 
intervention of last resort.  The LA aimed to work with governing bodies to build 
consensus to avoid having to use it; however, it was a useful power to call upon 
when needed.

32.6 The Director of Children’s Services explained that ultimately the consultation was 
sending the message that it remained the government’s intention to move to full 
academisation, and for all stand alone academies to join Multi Academy Trusts by 
2025.  It could be implied that the removal of this grant was removing a barrier to 
academisation.  He added that following the loss of the grant income it would be 
incredibly difficult to maintain a school improvement service at local authority level 
to support schools, consequently this would be a loss of service to maintained 
schools.  Senior officers were concerned about the impact this would have on the 
school improvement service, including a lack of intelligence in schools meaning less 
opportunity for LAs to act before performance deteriorated significantly and formal 
intervention became inevitable.  A member commented that it would be hugely 
disappointing to lose the support and advice the LA provided for maintained 
schools, which was greatly appreciated.

32.7 A member expressed concern that this was not a consultation but more of a nudge 
towards full academisation; the worry was how this may directly negatively impact 
on non academy schools in Gloucestershire.

32.8 The Director of Education reported that she had attended a South West regional 
consultation meeting with representatives of the DfE, who were running this 
consultation process.  The meeting was attended by Directors of Education in the 
south west region, who put forward concerns about the proposed change to the 
School Improvement funding.  This was the first meeting whereby Directors of 
Education could respond verbally, enabling those concerns to be registered as part 
of the consultation process.   

32.9 The Director of Children’s Services informed members that at those consultation 
meetings, the views of LAs were also being sought on the appetite for moving to full 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

6 

academisation ‘on block’ - meaning that all maintained schools would become 
academies at once.  It was becoming increasingly clear that the LA may, moving 
forward, need to commence with the development of a roadmap to full 
academisation for Gloucestershire schools.  This would be based on the realisation 
that it was the government’s directive and it would need to happen at some point.  
By taking this proactive approach it would enable discussions about how full 
academisation could be undertaken in the most constructive and beneficial way for 
the children in the county, to provide them with the best education experience.  It 
was recognised that a collaborative approach was needed and the Education 
Reference Group and the headteacher associations were viewed as useful forums 
to have the debate around moving towards full academisation.   Members 
expressed support for this approach, and it was suggested that governors should 
also be included in those conversations not just headteachers.

32.10 The Head of Education Strategy and Development referred to the following 
statement in the consultation document: 
‘The local authority role in school improvement has changed significantly in recent 
years, with the growth of school-led approaches, such as Multi-Academy Trusts 
(MATs), putting school improvement in the hands of the strongest schools and 
school leaders’. 
He contended that there were also many outstanding leaders within maintained 
schools.

32.11 The Head of Education Strategy and Development pointed out that it was a 
challenge for small rural schools to convert to academies because of issues around 
funding and viability.  He explained however, that it could be implied that the 
significant increase seen in sparsity funding was targeted at addressing those 
barriers to academisation.  Therefore, the proposed change to School Improvement 
funding was not an isolated example of the government working towards bringing 
about that change.

32.12 The Head of Education and Strategy agreed that he would share the LA’s draft 
response to the consultation on how LAs’ School Improvement activates were 
funded, with the representatives of maintained schools on the Schools Forum for 
comment.  He also encouraged maintained schools to respond to the consultation 
on an individual basis by the deadline date of 26 November 2021.

32.13 It was noted that at the 13 January 2022 meeting, the Forum would receive a report 
and recommendation from the LA, for a decision to be made on the future funding 
arrangements for School Improvement. 

33. HIGH NEEDS 

33.1 The Head of Education Strategy and Development provided an update on the High 
Needs forecast for 2021/22 and the current growth trends in Education Health and 
Care Plans (EHCPs).

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

7 

33.2 As reported at the last School’s Forum meeting in September there had been a 
further £660,000 increase in costs which has resulted in a forecast in-year deficit of 
just over £5M.   The forecast now included a 2% increase to top-ups as agreed at 
the previous Schools Forum meeting.  To offset this cost, the LA had made an 
adjustment in the forecast expenditure on external Alternative Provision, this had 
been possible due to the reduced pressure the Alternative Provision service.  

33.3 He reported that the most significant movement was in the College and FE budget, 
where there had been a sharp increase in the number of places.  An overview of 
the current mainstream EHCP profile was presented to the Forum which showed 
the allocation of funding into the different year groups.  It was noted that there had 
been a rise in primary, which may then flow through into secondary.  The spike in 
years 10 and 11 was starting to flow through into Post-16.  Small changes in trends 
and average costs in other budget areas, in this case the year 11 cohort, could 
have a significant impact.  To address those issues, the LA had developed a more 
detailed activity led financial model incorporating the various component budgets 
supporting High Needs.  The model would look back over the last three years to 
assess trends, and then forecast a 5 year forward plan. Officers were confident that 
the model would significantly improve the LA’s ability to accurately forecast and 
plan the budget for the next financial year.  The model had been developed in line 
with the DfE Dedicated Schools Grant Management Plan, to aid future discussions 
with the DfE.   It was noted that the Forum would receive further information on the 
model at the 13 January 2022 Schools Forum meeting.

33.4 The Forum noted that EHCP numbers were continuing to rise – the requests to 
assess in the June-September period were significantly up on last year.  The LA 
was planning to use a net increase of 400 new plans to forecast budget.  As part of 
the modelling work, there would be close look at the financial impact of that 
assumption over a 5 year period.

33.5 The forecast High Needs in-year deficit of just over £5M was broadly in line with 
previous year’s budget position.  The Head of Education Strategy and Development 
explained that the position was as good as could be reasonably expected, given the 
changes in the trends and pressures on the system.  Some LAs were reporting 
significant in-year High Needs deficit budgets – in one case £22M.

33.6 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that there was now an 
increased focus on the Post-16 transition process, making sure that the review 
process was effective, and that plans were ceased or reduced, as required.  The 
SEND Casework Team was under such pressure due to the volume of EHCPs in 
the system, that currently the annual reviews did not always take place on time.

33.7 Members were informed that it would take around 2/3 years for the benefits of the 
earlier intervention work being undertaken to start having an impact on the budget 
position - this was being built into the modelling work.  In addition, the impact of the 
investment in special school places and therefore a reduction on the reliance on out 
of county placements would also need to be factored into the modelling work.  Initial 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

8 

indications were that there was potential for an in-year High Needs balance by 
2024/25; however, there was likely to be a £18m deficit by that time.

33.8 Members were informed that the pressure on the High Needs budget was 
predominantly created by the rising level of need - this was a national issue.  The 
LA wanted to avoid making reactionary local decisions that would negatively affect 
the quality of provision for children with additional needs, when this was clearly a 
national crisis affected by national policy.  Therefore the publication of the 
government’s SEND review, which should give a clear steer nationally, was eagerly 
awaited.  It was also anticipated that the government would undertake a High 
Needs consultation at some point in the near future.

33.9 The Head of Education Strategy and Development reported that the government 
would soon provide clarity on how Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficits would 
be treated.  There was currently a protection in place so that LAs did not have to 
include the DSG deficit in the overall LA deficit reporting; however, this protection 
would run out at some point in the near future.   He explained that the DfE and 
ESFA were currently working with some LAs, and taking an individualised approach 
to dealing with DSG deficits.  However, as this was a national problem, a number of 
organisations were pushing the government to take a national approach.

33.10 The Forum noted the breakdown of the costs and trends for specialist and 
independent specialist provision.

33.11 The Director of Children’s Services emphasised that it was important to think about 
using the funding coming into Gloucestershire more effectively, to invest more in 
local special school places, which would mean fewer children needing to be placed 
out of the county in expensive residential and independent special schools.   He 
recognised that Gloucestershire, in comparison to other LAs, was currently 
disproportionately placing children in out of county specialist provision.

33.12 In response to a question, the Head of Education Strategy and Development 
explained there was scope for some of the additional funding for places for children 
and young people with SEND, to be used for Alternative Provision.  There was an 
opportunity to look at improving some of the infrastructure for Alternative Provision 
schools in the county and the way in which they were used.  He stressed however, 
that until there was further guidance from the DfE on how the funding could be 
accessed, it was difficult to comment on exactly how the funding could be utilised.  
If the DfE did insist that it could only go through the free school programme, then 
discussions would take place locally about what applications could be submitted 
through the free school programme, in partnership with the Mainstream, Special, 
and the Alternative Provision sectors. 

33.13 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that the High Needs 
Budget workshop meeting had taken place on 20 October 2021.  The focus of this 
meeting was on understanding the strategy and context of the High Needs budget.  
Moving forward the plan was for a High Needs Budget Working Group to take an in-

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

9 

depth look at specifically targeted areas and plans, to assess the impact and to 
ensure that the LA was actively taking the right approach.  

33.14 In response to a question, the Head of Education Strategy and Development 
explained that the SEND team was looking at the EHCP trends around year 6 and 
year 7, in an aim to understand the reason behind the significant variation in the 
number of EHCPs in the system in those two year groups.  There was currently a 
dip in number of EHCP requests in year 6 and then a marked increase in the 
number of requests in year 7.  He recognised that further analysis was needed on 
the data.  If this was a transitional issue then that would be where changes to the 
funding system would be important so that support could be provided outside of a 
statutory EHCP process in a more effective and timely manner to support the 
children during that time of need.  The Forum identified this as an area for the 
working group to take an in-depth look at.

34. F40 UPDATE 

The Head of Education Strategy and Development reported that he had attended 
the recent meeting of the f40 Executive Group.  The core focus of the F40 Group 
for this year and the next 3 years was to continue the campaign for equity in the 
National Funding Formula.  The f40 Group would also increase its focus on High 
Needs funding following publication of the government’s SEND review.  

35. NEXT MEETING 

The Forum noted the next meeting would take place at 2:00pm on Thursday 13 
January 2022.

Chair

Meeting concluded at 3.40 pm

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Schools Forum Meeting on 11 November 2021 

 
Action Sheet 

 
TOPIC 
 
 

 
ACTION 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

 
OUTCOME 
 

Actions from 16 
September 2021 
meeting 

Forum members to be provided with information on the 
Home to School Transport costs for children travelling to 
special schools in the county and independent special 
schools out of county. 
 

Head of Education 
Strategy and 
Development 

Report attached. 

Comprehensive 
Spending 
Review 2021 

Forum members to be provided with further details on the 
funding announcements once they become available. 
 

Head of Education 
Strategy and 
Development 
 
 

Details of the supplementary grant are included in 
January 2022 papers.  Further details on the 2023/24 
DSG will be available at the September forum 
meeting. 

 

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Education Directorate 

Home to School Transport Briefing December 2021 

Schools Forum 

 

Home to School Transport (HTST)  

GCC Home to School Transport (HTST) is experiencing unprecedented pressures and 
challenges at the current time. This is predominantly in relation to the specialist 
transport requirements for CYP with Special Needs (SEN) and is in part a result of the 
continuing growth in EHCPs (30% rise over the last 3 years). 

Growth is not the only factor however, as this has combined with other external factors 
to create a ‘perfect storm’ and has resulted in a number of contractors giving notice on 
contracts for some or all of the following economic and pandemic related reasons   

 rising fuel costs,  

 lack of drivers (drivers have retired or are being encouraged to re-train as HGV drivers, 

home delivery companies are poaching them all for Xmas deliveries and/or are paying more)  

 lack of personal assistants (very few want the work or feel the pay is not sufficient),  

 increasing costs of running, replacing and relicensing accessible vehicles etc  

 increasing costs of C-19, self-isolating and cover staff more generally  

 lack of competition – they can now try their luck with higher quotes and no-one 
else is there to compete. 

 

As a consequence many SEN transport routes are being re-tendered by ITU through 
the framework and in light of the lack of competition this is resulting in significantly 
higher contract costs (in some cases two or three times higher) as we have a limited 
supply of accessible taxi/minibus vehicles in the county.  

As an example we have had quotes circa £365 a day for a 6 mile journey - this 
equates to £1825 per week, or £71,000 per academic year.  

 

 Budget 

The HTST budget for 2019/20 was £11.5m, it has since jumped 31% to a predicted 
£15.1m this year and this could rise further with the increasing cost of SEN contracts 
which constitute the majority of the budget. MTFS bids have been submitted to meet 
the projected increase in costs for the next 2 years. 

 

Risks 

In light of the limited notice given by some contractors and in some cases a lack of 
contractors with accessible vehicles bidding for new work, there are a small number of 
children and families who may not have access to transport for short periods of time, 
until alternative arrangements on a temporary or permanent basis can be put in place. 

Page 13



 

The SEN Transport Enablement Team is working closely with families to keep them 
informed and working to mitigate the effect of change for this vulnerable group of 
children, many of which who do not respond well to changes in routine and personnel 
etc.  

SEN HTST costs are expected to increase in the short to medium term as the market 
adjusts to a range of factors in play. This is being monitored closely. 

 

Action underway 

 Transport routes are being re-tendered as quickly as possible to limit the 
amount of time, when provision may be affected/unavailable. Some tenders 
have been considered unreasonably high. 

 The SENTE team are working closely with ITU to secure temporary albeit more 
expensive solutions when needed, and families are being kept informed of the 
situation when it affects them. In some cases those families are able/willing to 
make their own temporary transport arrangements with the support of a 
Personal Travel Allowance - however not all families can make use of this 
option.  

 ITU in conjunction with Procurement are investigating options for improving the 
situation in the medium to longer term including the possibility of a pilot in-
house mini-fleet of accessible vehicles; encouraging the market and supporting 
local contractors to improve recruitment – a further report on options is 
expected in December. 

 Edge Public Solutions has been commissioned to carry out a full review of 
HTST service, policy, processes, resources and cross working arrangements – 
this work is ongoing and a report is expected mid January. 

 The Manager of the SENTE Team has recently resigned and interim 
arrangements will be put in place from January until any recommendations 
arising from the review can be considered more fully.   

 

 

Clare Medland 

Head of Commissioning for Learning 

Page 14



Notes of the School Improvement Grant meeting, held on Wednesday 9 December 2021.  The 
meeting was held remotely. 
 
Present: 
Schools Forum Members (maintained representatives):  
David Alexander (Secondary School Headteacher), Anne-Marie Delrosa (Secondary School Governor), 
Lisa Jones (Primary School Headteacher), Becky Martin (Special School Governor). 
 
Secondary School (Maintained) Headteachers: 
Kieron Smith (Headteacher of Archway School), Scott Albon (Headteacher of Barnwood Park School). 
 
Chairs of Gloucestershire Association of Special School Headteachers: 
Clare Steel (Headteacher of Alderman Knight School), Lyn Dance (CEO SAND Academies Trust). 
 
Chair of Gloucestershire Association of Primary Headteachers: 
Kerry Cunningham (Headteacher of Longlevens Infant School). 
 
Chairs of the Local Primary Partnerships: Kate Burke: Chair of WGSP (Headteacher of Yorkley Primary 
School), Karen Howard: Chair of GSP (Headteacher of Harewood Infant School), Jane Farren: Co-Chair of 
TDP (Headteacher of Norton C of E Primary School), John Jones: Chair of NCSP (Headteacher of Bourton- 
on-the-Water Primary Academy), Jon Millin: Chair of CLP (Headteacher of Shurdington C of E Primary 
School), Debbie Sleep: Chair of SAS (Headteacher of Stroud Valley Community School). 
 
GCC Officers: Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development, Clare Dudman, Head of 
School Improvement, Jo Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser and Clerk to the Schools Forum. 
 
1. Clare Dudman, Head of School Improvement, gave an overview of the background and context of the 
local authority’s (LA) school improvement duties and the government’s proposed changes to the school 
improvement monitoring and brokering grant.  She explained that the grant was allocated to LAs to enable 
the effective discharge of many of their school improvement duties, including monitoring the performance of 
maintained schools, brokering school improvement provision and intervening in under performing schools 
as appropriate.   The government, without any prior notice, had launched a consultation on ‘Reforming how 
local authority school improvement functions are funded’.  The consultation ran for only 20 working days, 
giving limited scope for LAs to respond.  Gloucestershire County Council’s response to the consultation had 
been circulated to Gloucestershire’s schools. 
 
2. She explained that under the current arrangements there was a distinction between core and 
additional improvement activities.  The government was proposing to remove the grant and change the 
regulations to enable all LA school improvement activity, including that provided in connection with 
additional improvement activities, to be funded  in what it sees as a similar way to academies who ‘top 
slice’ from school budgets. The government sees that this is comparable with  de-delegation from schools’ 
budget shares, with the agreement of the local schools forum or the Secretary of State.  However, this 
would prove inequitable as there had been a range of growth and capacity funds delivered either centrally 
or through the Regional Schools Commissioners office on which academies could draw, which maintained 
schools could not.  

 

3. The rationale behind the proposal to remove the grant was that local authorities rarely needed to 
utilise intervention powers, many historically poorer performing schools were now academies, and core 
improvement activities were part of a continuum of wider activity. Local Authorities had noted that the fact 
that the reason there was little need to use formal intervention powers was because of the effective 
targeting of the grant to avoid this becoming necessary. The Head of School Improvement noted that the 
Association of Directors of Children’s Services had provided comprehensive feedback on its concerns 
about the proposals. An outline of their concerns can be found here. 

 

4. It was reported that the government was considering the following two options:   
 
 Option 1 - A reduction of 50% of the LAMB grant amount in 2022/23, resulting in a loss of income 

£360k. Total removal of the grant in 2023/24, resulting in a loss of income totalling circa £720k.   
 Option 2 – Total removal of the grant in 2022/23. A loss of income £720k. 
 
The other potential outcome, although not likely, was that no changes would be made to the grant. 

Page 15

https://adcs.org.uk/assets/documentation/ADCS_CR_LAMB_Grant_consultation.pdf#:~:text=Removal%20of%20the%20Local%20Authority%20School%20Improvement%20Monitoring,million%20children%20who%20are%20taught%20in%20those%20schools.


 
5. The Head of Education Strategy and Development emphasised that if the government was to 
progress either of those two options, then it would place the LA in a very challenging position with only a 
short amount of time to adapt before the new financial year.  There had been widespread disappointment of 
the government’s plan to remove the grant as well as asking schools to dedelegate funds for school 
improvement support when budgets were already stretched. There were concerns that there would be a 
significant disparity between the funding of LA maintained schools and academy schools if the grant was 
removed. The Association of Directors of Children’s Service’s (ADCS) had responded to the consultation, 
setting out the key areas of concern and the resulting negative impacts the removal of the grant would have 
on LA maintained schools.   The ADCS had also made it clear in its response that the pandemic had 
highlighted the significant central role the LA had in working with all schools (regardless of governance) to 
ensure that the system provided a great education for all children and young people.  
 
6. The Head of Education Strategy and Development commented that he hoped the DfE, having 
reviewed all of the feedback, would at the very least extend the timescale for the removal of 50% grant 
funding, to give LAs the chance to mitigate the impact of the loss of income.  

 

7. Modelling work was being undertaken to establish how school improvement activities could be funded 
via de-delegation.  Whilst all other de-delegation amounts were often on a per pupil basis, it was felt this 
would not be the best option in this instance.  If this route was taken, all schools would need to pay the 
same amount meaning a cost of £9 per pupil.  For  a large secondary school this would result in a 
significant impact on its budget in comparison to a primary school who have greater access to services.  If 
school improvement funding did need to be de-delegated on a per pupil basis, then it was likely that 
secondary schools would need to be excluded, unless the DfE adapt the de-delegation rules to allow for 
variation in the amount paid per pupil for secondary schools. Consequently, the modelling suggested that 
de-delegation on a per school basis would be a much fairer option. If the consultation concludes in favour 
of the proposed model,  to cover the loss of 50% of the grant all local authority maintained schools would 
need to de-delegate around £1865 in the next financial year.   

 

8. The Head of Education Strategy and Development reported that decisions on de-delegation to fund 
school improvement would be taken at a Schools Forum meeting by the Forum members representing 
maintained schools across the school sector (i.e. Special, Alternative Provision, Primary, and Secondary).  
Each part of the sector would vote separately.  The DfE was due to publish its findings on the consultation 
in January 2022, therefore it was likely that an extra, single focus meeting of the School Forum would need 
to take place in March 2022. 

 

9. The Head of School Improvement explained that the LA had commenced with the development of a 
school improvement traded service.  The development of the service was planned before the government’s 
consultation was launched, in order to increase the offer of school improvement activities to schools.  The 
prospect of the grant being removed had resulted in the work to get this rolled out being expedited.  The 
short timescale involved with the potential removal of the grant meant the LA was unfortunately not yet in a 
position to offer this service to schools to mitigate the impact.  It would take approximately 18 months - 2 
years before the service was fully established.  The LA was aiming to develop packages of support that 
schools could purchase independently or as part of a cluster or grouping.  It would be a mixed economy of 
central services and a wider range of support available including utilising skills from both inside and outside 
the county.  It was recognised that some schools had already bought in external school improvement 
partners, and as a result, not all schools would buy-in to the service initially.  However, officers anticipated 
that as the service became increasingly established more schools would buy-in to it.  It was noted that the 
traded service would be offered to both LA maintained schools and academies.  
 
10. In response to a question, it was confirmed that the traded services offer would run in parallel to the 
de-delegation funding.  There was scope for the de-delegation amount to be reduced after one year once 
the traded service became established. 

 

11. It was reported that currently all LA maintained schools had the offer of one visit, per year, from a 
School Improvement Adviser.  The government’s proposal to remove this grant, would mean a loss of 
service, leading to a lack of intelligence in schools, and less opportunity for LAs to act before performance 
deteriorated significantly and formal intervention became inevitable.  It would also impact on the LA 
carrying out its statutory function of having oversight of school improvement actively in the whole school 
community; this was a critical area of concern given the LAs significant accountabilities to parents, carers 

Page 16



and the children and young people (particularly the most vulnerable). Officers felt that it was essential that 
the LA’s School Improvement Team remained in place in order to continue carrying out those functions. 

 
12. A headteacher pointed out that if the de-delegation amount was calculated on a per school basis, 
then small primary schools with much smaller budgets in comparison to large primary schools, would be 
paying the same de-delegation amount, which was inequitable.   Questions were raised on whether a three 
tiered pricing system could be implemented for the de-delegation amounts - dependant on the size of a 
school (i.e. small, medium, large).   The Head of Education Strategy and Development confirmed that 
currently the regulations did not allow for any variation between the per pupil amounts.  However, if this 
changed following the outcome of the consultation, then the LA could undertake some modelling work on 
adjusting the per pupil rate to reflect the size of the school, with a view to potentially presenting this as an 
option for consideration by the Schools Forum. 
 
13. A headteacher posed the question of why schools that were doing well, should be required to pay for 
a service, when it seemed that the LA would only be focusing the services on schools that required 
intervention.  Some schools did not receive any LA school improvement services, or only a very limited 
service, and therefore it may prove difficult for all schools to support a de-delegation proposal.  Officers 
clarified that the grant did not just fund the core school improvement activities, it funded a range of other 
services such as Fair Access and consultation on school admission arrangements, which affected all 
schools. 
 
14. A headteacher stressed that it was essential that schools were provided with a choice in how the 
school improvement business model operated, rather than being required to pay a significant amount of per 
pupil de-delegated funding (particularly in the case of a secondary school).  The Head of School 
Improvement acknowledged that a step change was needed to move towards a genuine partnership 
between schools and the LA, operating via a Gloucestershire schools’ partnership body, to enable schools 
to have a voice and so that important issues such as school improvement could be driven forward 
collectively. 
 
15. It was recognised that ultimately the consultation was part of the government’s wider agenda of 
moving towards full academisation. It could be implied that the removal of this grant was removing a barrier 
to academisation.  
 
16. The Head of Education Strategy and Development confirmed that work on modelling the potential 
options would continue and further information would be circulated once the outcome of the consultation 
was published - due end of January 2022. 
 
Ends. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Gloucestershire County Council Budget Consultation 
2022/23  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

13th January 2022 

Type of Decision For information and comment as part of the consultation 

Background 
Documents 

Council Strategy and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 – 2023/24 
Council Report: 17th February 2021 

Cabinet Report: 22nd December 2021: Draft Council Strategy and MTFS 
2022/23 to 2025/26. Link for full report – Item 5 on the Agenda 

Cabinet Report 22nd December 2021 Draft MTFS 2022/23 

Author Sue Hall, Finance Business Partner  

Extracts of report presented by: 

Paul Blacker: Director of Finance 

Steve Mawson: Executive Director of Corporate Resources 

  Jayne Fuller: Corporate Finance Manager 

Purpose of Report To inform the Schools Forum of the budget strategy and draft details for 
2022/23 and the MTFS covering the period 2022/23 to 2025/26. 

Key 
Recommendations 

That the report is noted and that any comments are fed back through the 
Council’s consultation process by 21st January 2022. 

Resource 
Implications 

The report covers the Council’s overall budget and the specific financial 
implications for Children and Families. 

Summary of Information 

The attached report is the summary MTFS position presented to Cabinet on the 22nd December 

2021 for the whole Council.  The link to the detailed report is included above but a number of 

specific annexes relating to the overall budget and specifically to Children and Families are 

attached for information. These include:- 

 Annex 2: Budget Summary by Service Area for the Council & budget movements in

services for Children and Families

 Annex 1 - Children and Families Commissioning Intentions 2022/23

In summary it is proposed that Children and Families receives cost increases of £14.786 million 

and achieves cost reductions of £0.205 million, a net increase in budget of £14.581 million. The 

Council’s financial planning cycle has recognised the continued pressure on the children’s and 

families budget during 2021/22. The forecast overspend at October was £17.328 million but 

included within these figures is the forecast additional cost of the impact of COVID-19 on budgets 

which totals £9.026 million giving an underlying over-spend of £8.302 million and this is reflected 

in the investment being made. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=10153&Ver=4


2 
 

Annex 2 – Budget Summary by Service Area 
 

 

 

 
 

P
age 20



3 
 

Annex 2 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 21



4 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



5 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



6 
 

 

 

 

Annex 1 – Commissioning Intentions 2022-23 
 

Directorate Children and Families  

 

Context and Strategic Direction  

Children’s commissioning continues to make significant strides on the road to 
improvement. Whilst there are strong signs of progress, the challenge remains to 
both increase pace and ensure consistent practice and performance. The service is 
clear as to the main areas that require focus in readiness for a full Ofsted inspection, 
and intensive work is well underway to ensure implementation of key strategies 
aimed at improving service outcomes for Children, Young People and Families.   
 
As well as our ongoing work programmes with Health, Youth, Placements and 
Families, Children’s has now taken on responsibility for the commissioning of Short 
Breaks and addressing the challenge of a lack of in-house non-disability related 
residential provision which has resulted in placements far away from home as well 
as considerable costs on an already pressured budget. 
 
During the pandemic the commissioning hub has taken on responsibility for a 
number of government grants and initiatives, supporting vulnerable children young 
people and families. These include the COVID – Winter Grant, Local Support grant 
and Household support grant, as well as delivering the Holiday Activity Fund 
delivering a summer programme for children with the county. As part of the National 
Spending Review this programme will be funded for a further 3 years.  
 
Our strategic direction continues to follow the Children and Families Plan, and is 
further informed by our Sufficiency Strategy - Right Placement First Time, the 
Gloucestershire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2019-2030, the NHS Long 
Term Plan, 2019–2024 and the national strategy for autistic children, young people 
and adults 2021-2026. The NHS England CYP Transformation Programme also 
provides national direction on priorities for children and young people, and Our local 
Preparation for Adulthood Strategy brings together the key priorities for young 
people, where seamless transition to adulthood is particularly important. This will 
continue to be implemented over 2022-2023. Our Placements work has been 
particularly impacted by new legislation/statutory guidance barring the placement of 
Under 16s in unregistered accommodation, and there is a move away from over 
reliance on frameworks and towards increased control of placement availability in-
county that is flexible and of good quality. 
 
In Education, we are working within the context of the School Places Strategy to 
commission and deliver sufficient high quality school places, where they are needed 
at the appropriate time and despite the pandemic, we are achieving delivery targets 
for the majority of schemes. We continue to ensure that CYP are able to access 
schools through the coordinated and in year (fair access) admissions processes and 
where eligible are provided with transport assistance to school.   
 
There is an increasing challenge of securing appropriate levels of developer 
contributions towards essential school infrastructure arising from new housing 
development. Working with Strategic Planning colleagues we continue to make the 

Page 24



7 
 

case at appeal. A new survey of pupil yields from new development is being 
commissioned to inform education planning policy in 2022.  
 
In addition to mainstream school place planning we are also carefully monitoring the 
need to commission and deliver more special school places.  A constant rise in the 
number of children and young people with an Education Health and Care plan has 
put significant pressure on our existing special school infrastructure.  A new school is 
already planned to open in the Autumn of 2023, but it is likely that further special 
schools will need to be commissioned for future years. 
 
SEND services are a local area high priority, we are revising our Local Area SEND 
and Inclusion strategy. In order for education services to identify needs, develop and 
deliver effective SEND and Inclusion service recent changes have been to Education 
and Inclusion Leadership arrangements to drive these developments forward.  
 
  
Our progress on current priorities has inevitably been disrupted by the Covid 
pandemic and there has been a need to realign priorities in response to constantly 
changing local and national needs resulting from the pandemic, to ensure we 
continue to meet our statutory responsibilities to children and families. By way of 
example, Cabinet permission was obtained to delay the reconfiguration and 
retendering of Youth Support Services by an additional year in order for the service 
to respond to the immediate needs brought on by the pandemic. We have also 
reconfigured the composition and function of a wide range of departmental panels to 
achieve better consistency of proactive and decision making across Children’s and 
Families commissioning.  

 
 

Needs Analysis  

There are a number of current needs driving service development in Children’s. 
Some needs are evidenced by steeply rising referral rates into services, with an 
increase of children in care, doubling of caseload in Housing advice, substance 
misuse, Mental Health referrals (Jun-Aug 2021, 806 referrals to Core CAMHS +33% 
change from previous year), young people needing support and treatment for eating 
disorders (referrals to the Eating disorder clinic averaged 8 per month in 2019/20. In 
2020/21 this has risen to an average of 31 per month) and Speech and Language 
Therapy, coupled with an upturn in the previously declining teenage pregnancy rate. 
Engaging care leavers who are furthest from the jobs market is also a particular 
challenge in a shrinking economy. 
 
With regards to Placements, national paucity of provision is being chased by multiple 
authorities (often on the same framework), which has inevitably led to scarcity of 
provision and created a ‘Provider led’ environment, alongside a predictable increase 
of costs with no associated increase in quality of outcome or availability. Our data 
further informs us that 85.5% of GCC young people in care placed in residential 
provision (including those funded by Health) were placed outside of our borders, 
resulting in young people being far from home and substantial pressure on budgets. 
 
The same applies to specialist education places and a detailed review of projected 
future need is underway in response to the continuing growth in EHC Plans to inform 
the next bidding round for new Specialist Free School proposals expected in spring 
2022 (from around 3,000 in 2017 to almost 4,500 in 2021 and represents 3.6% of the 
school pupil cohort). This in turn is influencing demand for home to school transport 

Page 25



8 
 

(HTST), at a time when contractors are struggling to meet demand and the paucity of 
competition is driving up prices. An external review of HTST has been commissioned 
to consider how best to manage the increasing demand, which is due to report in 
January 2022.   
 
Children under 5 are now our biggest cohort of children coming into care, this has 
change as in 2017 the biggest cohort was 10-15yrs. Some of this change could be 
due to the pandemic, where families have lost their resilience during this time without 
the support services usually in place, contributing to this change in demographic 
could also be the reconfiguration of Children Centres in 2017 reducing the universal 
and support offers to families.   
 
The Short breaks team continues to analyse need and have consequently begun to 
achieve increased clarity and a better understand of the number of children and 
young people eligible for short breaks alongside the needs of their families. The 
combination of both factors coupled with a clearer appreciation of the effect of the 
pandemic on existing Providers and new entrants will enable a comprehensive 
Sufficiency Strategy to be co-produced and shared with prospective providers. 
Moving forward, this in turn will lead to more effective commissioning of services and 
better outcomes for Children Young people and their Families.  
 
 

 
 

Resources 

The total base budget (excluding the Dedicated School Grant and other grants) for 
Vulnerable Children (£104.1m) and Other Children’s Services including Education 
services (£21.9m) is £126m for 2021/22. The significant operational pressures in the 
Service are reflected in pressure nationally as well as locally, and the current year’s 
forecast over-spend of £8.3m (excluding COVID related costs) coupled with the 
MTFS proposals seek to address this underlying position. The investment proposed 
for 2022/23 is £11.8m in Vulnerable Children and £3m in Other Children’s Services, 
a total of £14.8m. Due to the financial pressure in the Service, limited savings of 
£0.2m are proposed with a large element of these relating to the declining cost of 
education deferred pensions. The net increase in the total budget will be £14.6m 
although some of the funding will only be allocated for 2022/23.  
 
The proposed investment within Vulnerable Children includes funding for external 
placements (£5m with £1m one-off) to fund the current activity and costs, additional 
social care staff (£2.2m) to reduce caseloads and fund the cost of agency social 
workers and fostering staff and allowances including special guardianships orders 
(£1.4m). Other Children’s Services includes proposals to cover the cost pressure in 
Home to school transport (£2m) for SEN routes and the cost of procuring new routes 
and additional staff to support SEND and systems (£0.7m). Other investments cover 
pay inflation estimates, contract inflation and administration support. 
 
There are no identified resources for youth support in the MTFS beyond current 
contract budgets. Providers (such as GYC, CCP, Barnardos, Prospects) have used 
their workforce and volunteers flexibly during Covid, and successfully leveraged in 
external monies.  
 
Revenue funding of Short Break provision will be achieved within existing budget 
allocations. Families who are in receipt of Direct Payments will be approached to ask 

Page 26



9 
 

whether they wish to continue with their current arrangements or whether they wish 
the Council to commission on their behalf. It is hoped that by ‘flexing’ allocations 
between directly commissioned services and those bought by Direct Payments 
greater financial efficiencies will be achieved. We do not anticipate significant 
savings as part of the Tender; rather it provides an opportunity to manage costs 
more effectively for up to 50% of our jointly funded residential placements.  We also 
anticipate that the Local Authority should see reductions in travel time and 
associated claims by social workers if the tender is successful in ensuring more 
young people live within Gloucestershire or close by. We are also in a strong positon 
to bid for DfE monies being made available as part of a new £19.5M Children’s home 
capital building programme. If we are successful with a bid, it will accelerate our 
programme to develop residential provision in county for our children and young 
people. 
 
 
 
The main budget pressures in CCG budgets are packages of care for those children 
and young people who meet Continuing Care criteria and require health support and 
short breaks.  Many agencies are not able to source staff, and for agencies who can 
provide staff, costs are higher.   This links into wider workforce and short breaks 
developments. Where GCC funds services provided by the NHS, an MTFS bid 
proposes an inflationary increase for these services.   
 
S17 cost pressure – Commissioning will become custodians of the budgets, 
developments from April 2022 will include processing spend in real time, and the 
implementation of new DPS framework for professional services to meet 
procurement requirements, improving efficiencies and quality of services.       

Babies born in lockdown grant obtained form COMF funding – Joint HV and C&FC 
programme overseen by commissioning. 

MTFS bids submitted as the Placements budget is constantly under pressure and 
the overspend continues to increase month on month despite best efforts to curb 
expenditure. The projection is a continuation of this upward trend for the foreseeable 
future until an astute commissioning model is able to begin addressing some of 
these needs and help the County Council to achieve better economies of scale in 
Placements.  
 
Moving away from unregistered Placements for u16 YP creates a problem in the 
current market/environment, as demand does not necessarily decline with the 
unavailability of unregistered placements this puts further pressure on the 
placements budget.   
 
The table below illustrates actual Placements spend to 31 August 2021. 
 
 

Page 27



10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Residential £12,074,906 

Fostering £4,729,331 

Supported 
Accommodation 

£2,870,759 

SEN £2,455,365 

Support  £291,174 

Education £0 

Therapy £0 

Unregulated £101,842 

Total £22,523,375 

 
 

Outcomes and Priorities for the year – headline bullets which will become our action 
plan 

 
Children’s and Families Commissioning is working on delivering the following: 

 Recommission integrated youth support contract by October 2022 
 Maintain and monitoring youth support performance in all areas 
 Commissioning of a new Day Centre service within the Trevone House 

provision 
 Supporting delivery of the second year of the EUSS with voluntary partners 
 Lead, develop and implementation of a model of good practice across the SW 

to enable UASC young people to successfully settle within Gloucestershire 
and the SW region 

 Retain and resource support for young adult carers via GYC for April 2022 
 Recommission children’s social care advocacy services (alongside adult 

advocacy procurement) by October 2022 
 Review resource for Appropriate Adults Service for the remaining two years of 

the contract. 
 Deliver new direct provision Saturday Club and Holiday playscheme short 

break provision accessible to all areas of the County from April 2022 
 Develop a specialist Saturday Club and Holiday play scheme short break 

provision for children and young people with multiple and complex needs from 
April 2022 

 Develop a 2 bedded residential respite facility for children and young people 
with multiple and complex needs during 2022/23 

 Develop two 6 bedded homes to be run on a therapeutic model, both of which 
will have supported accommodation as part of the contract 

 Develop a placement portfolio of GCC through the capital programmes  for 
the design development and delivery of,   Southfield, Townsend  and 
Barnwood  

 Deliver GCC new  Sufficiency  Strategy  for the new  3 years  
 Develop a pseudo framework to deliver a multi year opportunity to develop 

residential provision for young people aged 12 – 17 years 
 Development of a range of priorities in the NHS Long Term Plan 
 Delivery of priorities as outlined in the NHS England CYP Transformation 

Programme 
 Recommissioning of the C&FC’s into a Family Hub model 
 Extend Vulnerable Women’s Project for a further year 
 Explore the retendering of the Welfare Fund and FSM support 

Page 28



11 
 

 Deliver efficiencies on the S17 Access to Resources Panel 
 Develop and roll out the school improvement project model to increase pace 

and impact of school intervention activity 
 Implement the new Virtual School Improvement plan to improve the impact of 

the service on educational outcomes for CIC, including the roll out of the E-
PEP record to the schools’ system 

 To rollout the digitalisation programme for EHCP casework alongside longer 
term practice changes around EHCP assessment processes 

 To re-shape the Educational Psychology Service to meet statutory, traded and 
WER demand within budget 

 To review the SEND Local offer, including the coproduction work with the 
Future Me YP Ambassadors 

 To progress the transformation of the Alternative Provision service to a unified 
service in appropriate accommodation for primary and secondary provision 

 To provide HTST and SENTE provision in line with demand in a challenging 
tendering environment 

 To restructure Traded services to ensure a MAT offer and services operating 
within revenue 

 To maintain Early Years’ sufficiency against national factors such as the 
ending of furlough and changes to national minimum wage on patterns of 
demand and provider capacity/sustainability. 

 To manage EY sector needs arising from commissioning activity either 
underway or about to commence linked to family hubs, Children and Families 
Centres  

 

 

 

 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Dedicated Schools Grant 2022/23  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

13th January 2022 

Type of Decision For decision 

Background 
Documents 

16th December 2021 DfE announcement - School funding boosted 
by £4bn to level up education for young people - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) 

Schools Forum report 16th September 2021 

Author Phil Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Neil Egles, Finance Manager – Schools Strategy and Capital 

Purpose of Report To report on the implications of the census data and Dedicated 

Schools Grant (DSG) updates for 2022/23 and to make 

recommendations on the final funding formula for mainstream 

schools 

Key 
Recommendations 

The Forum is asked to: 

1. Note the Dedicated Schools Grant settlement for 2022/23. 

2. Recommend the council agree the school funding formula for 
2022/23, as set out in Annex A 

3. Agree that the balance on the schools block can be used at 
year end as a one off contribution to support the continuation of 
the 1 in 40 High Needs model  

4. Note the information on the additional funding that will be 

received through the separate Schools Supplementary Grant. 

5. Forum agrees to  

a. apply the 0.17p increase to the hourly rate for 3 and 4 
year olds and to consult with the early years forum on 
the formula distribution 

b. apply the 0.21p to the base rate for 2 year olds as set 
out in section 4. 

6. The Forum agrees the allocation of the central schools services 
block as set in section 5. 

Resource 
Implications 

The 2022/23 DSG announced on 16th December 2021 totals 
£547.222m. An additional Supplementary Grant of £15.284m has 
also been announced giving total funding of £562.506m. 

 
This represents an increase in funding of £38.662m (7.4%) from the 
current 2021/22 DSG.  
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



1 Introduction 

 

This paper updates the Forum on the final Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) for 

2022/23.  The Forum will now need to make recommendations on the funding 

formula for mainstream schools, early years providers and note the latest position on 

the central school services block and high needs block (see separate paper) of the 

DSG. An update on the additional Supplementary Grant is also included. 

 

2 Dedicated Schools Grant and Supplementary Grant 

2.1 Summary 

The final DSG for 2022/23, updated based on the October 2021 census, was 

announced on the 16th of December 2021. A Supplementary Grant for 2022/23 was 

also announced at the same time to provide extra funding for schools and high 

needs.  

 

The Supplementary Grant is in addition to the schools and high needs block DSG 

funding calculated under the National Funding Formula (NFF).  The increase in 

funding  is to recognise the additional costs that local authorities and schools will 

face in the coming year, which were not foreseen when the original high needs block 

allocations were calculated.  This includes the Health and Social Care Levy, that will 

be applied initially through increased national insurance contributions from 

employers. 

 

The 2022/23 position for Gloucestershire is as follows: 

 

These figures include changes for census date movements in pupil numbers. 

 

This represents an overall increase in funding of £38.662m (7.4%) from the 2021/22 

DSG  

 

2.2 Schools Block and Delegated Schools Formula 

After taking into account the previously agreed growth fund of £1.3m, the funds 

allocated in the DSG schools block settlement are enough to allow each formula 

factor rate and the minimum funding levels to be implemented 100% at the NFF level 

and for the MFG to be set at the same +2% level as the funding floor within the NFF.  

 

Details of the Key changes in the NFF between 2021/22 and 2022/23 were 
presented at the 17th September 2021 Schools Forum meeting along with details 
of the NFF rates for each individual factor. Those NFF factors and rates will still 

Page 32



be used in the 2022/23 DSG allocations that will be notified to individual 
mainstream schools at the end of February 2022, however, additional funding 
will now also be received by those schools via the newly announced 2022/23 
Schools Supplementary Grant as detailed below: 
 
Schools Supplementary Grant  

£1.2 billion of additional funding nationally is to be allocated to schools through 

this separate grant which is in addition to the schools block DSG funding. 

Gloucestershire’s share of this is £12.295m. 

The schools supplementary grant funding for early years and post-16 provision in 

schools is provided in respect of the Health and Social Care Levy and will be 

allocated on a simple per-pupil basis 

The additional funding for mainstream school provision for pupils aged 5 to 16 is 

provided in respect of both the Health and Social Care Levy and wider cost 

pressures.  

Funding for 5 to 16 mainstream schools makes up the bulk of the additional £1.2 
billion to be allocated through the schools supplementary grant. The 5 to 16 
funding rates consist of the following three elements, which are based on factors 
already in the schools national funding formula: 

 a basic per-pupil rate (with different rates for primary, key stage 3 and key 
stage 4) 

 a lump sum paid to all schools, regardless of pupil numbers 

 a per-pupil rate for pupils who are recorded as having been eligible for free 
school meals at any point in the last six years (FSM6), with different rates 
for primary and secondary pupils. 

 
The base per-pupil funding rates are: 
 
For early years provision in schools £24 per pupil 
 
For 5-16 schools: 

 basic per-pupil rate of £97 for primary pupils 

 basic per-pupil rate of £137 for key stage 3 pupils 

 basic per-pupil rate of £155 for key stage 4 pupils 

 lump sum of £3,680 

 FSM6 per-pupil rate of £85 per eligible primary pupil 

 FSM6 per-pupil rate of £124 per eligible secondary pupil 
 
For 16-19 provision in schools and academies £35 per student. 
 
Individual school-level allocations for the Schools Supplementary Grant (SSG) 
will be published in Spring 2022. 
 

Page 33



Changes in funding rates between 2021/22 and 2022/23 
For ease of reference, the table from the September Forum meeting that showed 
the change in NFF rates between 2021/22 and 2022/23 is shown below with the 
additional SSG rates shown alongside. 
 

 

An Area Cost Adjustment (ACA) to reflect geographical variation in both the general labour market (GLM) 
and in teacher pay scales is also applied in the NFF and the SSG. For Gloucestershire the ACA is 1.00629 
which will be applied as usual to further increase the factor rates above where applicable. 
 

These are the same NFF 2022/23 factor rates that were reported at the indicative 

budget stage at the September Forum meeting, with the only change to the schools 

funding formula then being to use the updated census data numbers which produces 

the summary formula shown at Annex A. Please note those allocations are before 

the additional Schools Supplementary Grant. 

 

This leaves a balance of £0.307m in the 2022/23 schools block and it is proposed 

that this balance is used at year end as a one-off contribution to support the 

continued funding of the 1 in 40 High Needs model.  

Page 34



The remaining factor that could affect school funding is the School Improvement 

Grant consultation response and the next steps proposed by the LA. This follows the 

government’s consultation about the removal of this grant and the suggestion that 

core activity can be funded by de-delegation deduction from maintained schools 

budget shares. As the feedback and next steps from the DfE regarding the 

consultation will not be received until after the deadline for submitting the schools 

funding formula via the Authority Pro Forma Tool (APT), no actions relating to the 

consultation proposals have been built into Annex A.  Notes from an initial meeting 

with the maintained schools and chairs of the associations are included in the forum 

papers.  Forum members will also be aware that we have planned an additional, 

single item forum meeting in March to address the outcome of the consultation and 

agree a way forward. 

 

Recommendations 

1. The Forum notes the Dedicated Schools Grant settlement for 2022/23.  

2. The Forum recommend the council agree the school funding formula for 

2022/23, as set out in Annex A. 

3. The Forum agrees that the balance on the schools block can be used at 

year end as a one off contribution to support the continuation of the 1 in 40 

High Needs model. 

4. The Forum notes the information on the additional funding that will be 

received through the separate Schools Supplementary Grant. 

 

3 Pupil Premium Grants 

The Pupil premium grants for 2022/23 have also been announced and have been 

increased in-line with inflation to the following: 

 Primary FSM6 pupils: £1,385 

 Secondary FSM6 pupils: £985 

 Looked-after children: £2,410 

 Children who have ceased to be looked-after £2,410 

 Service children: £320 

Allocations for schools will be published in Spring 2022 

 

The DfE will be issuing Information about other grants for 2022/23 during 2022. 

 

4 Early Years  

The funding announcements on 16th December included an increase in the hourly 

funding rates by 17 pence for three and four year olds and 21 pence for two year 

olds (see table below). In addition to this increase there was an increase of £27,205 

to the disability access fund and an increase of £60,544 for pupil premium, giving an 

overall decrease to the early years block of £440,268 for 2022/23. There will be 

further updates in the summer 2022 and summer 2023 for the January pupil counts 

which will reflect more accurately the picture than the January 2021 census which 

these figures are based on.   

 
 

Page 35



 

 Early Years block 2022/23 

Hourly 
Price 

increase 
Activity 
change 

Price 
increase 

Activity 
Impact Total 

  £ PTE £ £ £ 

2 yr olds 0.21 -39.39 120,781 -126,856 -6,075 

3  & 4 yr olds universal 0.17 -532.60 872,018 -1,399,513 -527,495 

3  & 4 yr olds working parents 0.17 -130.63 348,810 -343,257 5,553 

Pupil premium 
    

60,544 

Disability Access Fund 
    

27,205 

  
 

-702.62 1,341,609 -1,869,626 -440,268 

Activity based on January 2021 census         

 
Recommendation 5 

Forum agrees to apply the 0.17p increase to the hourly rate for 3 and 4 years 
olds and to consult with the early years forum on the formula distribution 
and to apply the 0.21p to the base rate for 2 year olds. 

 

Early years use of balances  

At the end of 2020/21 the carry forward of Early Years DSG in Gloucestershire was 
£989k caused by payments for three and four year olds being much lower than 
budget and the slippage on project plans due to the pandemic. The final adjustments 
for 2020/21 were notified in November and include the lagged effect of the May 
census on the spring term, giving a final early years balance of £1.464 million. The 
2021/22 budget will be based on the May 2021, October 2021 and January 2022 
census and the summer and autumn terms budget will be notified by the DFE in 
January 2022 and to date in-year forecasts have been reported as breakeven.  The 
recent census data reported locally (October 21) indicates that numbers are below 
the 2019 levels for three and four years olds therefore a decision on the use of a 
significant part of the balances for last year will need to wait until this information is 
analysed in January.  
 
5 Central School Services Block (CSSB) 

The CSSB includes funding for on-going responsibilities of Local Authorities for the 
statutory duties that they hold for both maintained schools and academies. It includes 
funding for Admissions, School Forum coordination, copyright licences and centrally 
retained duties. The allocation is based on a formula using pupil numbers (90%), free 
school meals (Ever 6, 10%) with an area cost adjustment applied. The rate per pupil 
for 2022/23 has increased by £1.90 to £36.09 and there has been an increase of 713 
pupils resulting in a 6.5% increase of £0.180m. 

 

These funds cover the following costs:-  

 

Central School Services Block £M 

Copyright licences 0.522 

Schools Forum 0.127 

Admissions Coordination 0.750 

Centrally Retained Duties 1.565 

TOTAL 2.964 

 

Page 36



The cost of copyright licences reflects the 2022/23 charge, there is no change to 
Schools Forum and Admissions and the balance is adjusted against centrally 
retained duties.  
 
Recommendation 6  
Forum agrees the allocation of the central school’s services block as set out 
above. 
 

6. High Needs 

 

The High Needs Block of the DSG has been allocated an additional £6.968m. On top 

of this a further £2.989m has been allocated through a Supplementary Grant, 

bringing the total high needs funding for 2022/23 up to £84.310m, an increase of 

13.4%. 

Details of the 2021/22 High Needs forecast and further details about high needs for 

2022/23 are contained within the High Needs report.  

 

 

Page 37



Annex A 
Schools and academies budget allocations before de-delegation % of

Units Rate Primary Secondary Total delegated

Pupil led Factors: £ £ £ £ budget

Basic Entitlement Primary (Age Weighted Pupil Unit) 47,382 £3,237.23 153,384,813 153,384,813 36.0%

Basic Entitlement KS3 (Age Weighted Pupil Unit) 21,690 £4,564.53 99,004,656 99,004,656 23.2%

Basic Entitlement KS4 (Age Weighted Pupil Unit) 13,341 £5,144.15 68,628,105 68,628,105 16.1%

Total AWPU (October 2021 pupils) 82,413 153,384,813 167,632,761 321,017,574 75.3%

Deprivation Primary (FSM ever 6) 8,921 £593.71 5,296,383

Deprivation Secondary (FSM ever 6) 6,498 £870.44 5,656,482

Deprivation Primary (FSM) 8,258 £472.96 3,905,770

Deprivation Secondary (FSM) 5,206 £472.96 2,462,151

IDACI F Primary 4,529 £221.38 1,002,528

IDACI F Secondary 2,995 £322.01 964,570

IDACI E Primary 3,564 £271.70 968,398

IDACI E Secondary 2,560 £427.67 1,094,776

IDACI D Primary 1,313 £422.64 554,945

IDACI D Secondary 874 £598.74 523,127

IDACI C Primary 1,809 £462.89 837,564

IDACI C Secondary 1,129 £654.09 738,506

IDACI B Primary 1,773 £493.08 874,082

IDACI B Secondary 1,085 £704.40 764,311

IDACI A Primary 164 £644.03 105,752

IDACI A Secondary 100 £895.60 89,765

Prior Attainment (Y1-6 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile) 13,550 £1,137.11 15,407,660

Prior Attainment (Y7 - Y11 LPA) 7,046 £1,720.76 12,124,639

English as Additional Language (3 year EAL) 2,320 £568.55 1,319,298

English as Additional Language (3 year EAL) 380 £1,539.62 584,596

Mobility Primary 415 £930.82 386,750

Mobility Secondary 55 £1,338.37 73,928

Total Pupil Led delegations 184,043,942 192,709,611 376,753,552 88.3%

School Leds Factors: £ £ £ £

Lump Sum 244 £122,062.98 29,783,367 8.2%

Lump Sum 41 £122,062.98 5,004,582 0.0%

Sparsity 74 £55,345.95 3,015,658 0.8%

Sparsity 5 £80,503.20 196,294 0.0%

Total Other Formula factors 32,799,026 5,200,876 37,999,901 8.9%

Premises: £ £ £

Split Sites 3 schools @ £46,859.91 + £62.53 / pupil 168,218 168,218 0.0%

Rates 2,529,617 1,195,518 3,725,135 0.9%

Exceptional Premises Factor - Rents Based on 22/23 estimates 149,118 0 149,118 0.0%

Total Premises 2,846,953 1,195,518 4,042,471 0.9%

Total budget allocations before MFG, minimum pupil funding uplift and de-delegation 219,689,921 199,106,004 418,795,925 98.2%

Currently based on 22/23 NFF + 21/22 

adjustments

1,903,894 0.4%

460,677 0.1%

34,787,949

3,211,952

1,638,393 0.4%

195,517 0.0%

27,532,298 6.5%

2,063,173 0.5%

1,078,072 0.3%

1,576,070 0.4%

10,952,865 2.6%

6,367,921 1.5%

1,967,098 0.5%

R
e
a
s

P
age 38



Minimum Per Pupil Funding Uplift £ £ £

Additional funding due to minimum per pupil funding (primary pupils) 52 £4,265 3,581,459 3,581,459 0.8%

Additional funding due to minimum per pupil funding (Secondary schools with KS3 & KS4  pupils) 12 £5,525 3,228,429 3,228,429 0.8%

Additional funding due to minimum per pupil funding (Secondary schools with KS3 pupils only) 0 £5,321 0

Additional funding due to minimum per pupil funding (Secondary schools with KS4 pupils only) 0 £5,831 0 0 0.0%

Total Minimum Pupil Funding Uplft 3,581,459 3,228,429 6,809,888 1.6%

Total budget allocations before MFG and De-delegations 223,271,379 202,334,433 425,605,813 99.8%

Minimum Funding Guarantee £ £ £

MFG protections 2.00% 676,804 156,982 833,785 0.2%

Total Minimum Funding Guarantee 676,804 156,982 833,785 0.2%

Total budget allocations after MFG, Minimum Per Pupil Funding Uplift but before De-delegations 223,948,183 202,491,415 426,439,598 100.0%

Proposed de-delegation for maintained schools only (takes into account anticipated conversions by 4/1/22)

Maintained Rate Primary Secondary Total

Pupils £ £ £ £

Targeted Intervention & Support Primary 34,252 £9.27 317,516

Targeted Intervention & Support Secondary 4,297 £0.00 0

Union Facilities Primary 34,252 £3.05 104,469 104,469 0.0%

October Pupil Increases (above threshold) 34,252 £6.32 216,473 216,473 0.1%

Education Functions Primary (statutory duties previously covered by ESG general duties) 34,252 £5.00 171,260 171,260 0.0%

Education Functions Secondary (statutory duties previously covered by ESG general duties) 4,297 £5.00 21,485 21,485 0.0%

Total de-delegation funds available to maintained schools 38,549 809,717 21,485 831,202 0.2%

0

Total budget allocations after MFG, Minimum Per Pupil Funding Uplift and De-delegations 223,138,465 202,469,930 425,608,396 99.8%

317,516 0.1%

 
 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

High Needs Report  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

12th January 2022 

Type of Decision For information and discussion 

Background 
Documents 

High Needs Strategy 

16th December 2021 DfE announcement - School funding boosted 
by £4bn to level up education for young people - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) 

Authors Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Purpose of Report To provide updates on High Needs forecast for 2021/22 and the current 

growth trends in Education Health and Care Plans.   

To provide a 5 year forecast for the High Needs budget including 

underlying assumptions. 

To provide an update on key activities to reduce High Needs expenditure 

Key 
Recommendations 

Forum members are asked to: 

 review the current forecast and associated information and bring 

any questions to the meeting.      

 consider the local and national EHCP data and bring any questions 

to the meeting. 

 to review and consider the 5-year plan and bring any questions to 

the meeting.  We would also like Forum to agree for the 

development of the forecast and the underlying assumptions to be 

a priority for the High Needs working group in the spring term. 

Resource 
Implications 

Expected increase in High needs expenditure in 2021/22 of £613,000 
resulting in an in-year deficit of £5,711m. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



1. High Needs – Forecast for 2021/22 

1.1. The table below shows the High Needs forecast, less recoupment, as at the end of 

November 2021.  Since the last School’s Forum meeting in September there has been a 

further £613,000 increase in forecast expenditure which results in a forecast in-year deficit 

of just over £5.7m. 

High Needs Block 
 

Budget 
Forecast 

(Nov 2021) 
Variance to 

budget 

  

£000 £000 £000 

Alternative provision - places & top ups & services 
 

5,470.8 5,077.9 -392.9 

Alternative provision - Glos Hospital Education 
 

2,030.7 1,974.4 -56.3 

EHCP Costs - College and FE 
 

4,698.9 5,825.6 1,126.7 

EHCP Costs - Early Years 
 

233.5 275.8 42.3 

EHCP Costs - Primary 
 

7,882.3 8,345.6 463.3 

EHCP Costs - Secondary 
 

5,226.0 5,550.3 324.3 

Excluded pupils 
 

-100.0 -188.1 -88.1 

LA Services and staffing 
 

3,870.9 3,900.9 30.0 

Independent Special Schools 
 

17,262.7 17,266.5 3.8 

Restorative Practice 
 

200.0 199.7 -0.3 

Special Centres 
 

291.3 279.5 -11.8 

Special school provision 
 

20,948.2 21,230.2 282.0 

Support Services 
 

1,286.1 1,180.7 -105.4 

Virtual School 
 

620.3 620.3 0.0 

High Needs Unallocated 
 

-4,093.3 0.0 4,093.3 

Rounding 
 

-0.1 0.1 0.2 

  

65,828.3 71,539.4 5,711.1 

 

1.2. The increased forecast expenditure is driven by higher than forecast EHCP costs. In 

September we reported a rise in the trends for EHCP requests, this rise has continued and 

has therefore impacted on the mainstream and special school forecasts.  This has resulted 

in forecast expenditure for Primary EHCP costs increasing by £230k, Secondary EHCP 

costs by £120k and the cost of specialist placements by £250k.   

1.3. This means that the forecast deficit position for 2021/22 of £5.7m is greater than the 

previous year (£5.4M). We had set out with the aim to see an improved position this year, 

but the 2% increase in top-up rates, significant increases in support for EHCPs in post-16 

and further education and the increase in initial requests for EHCPs has meant that we 

have been unable to reduce the in-year deficit position. 

1.4. Later in this report I have shared a draft 5-year forecast.  Refining and being clear on the 

assumptions we make regarding EHCP growth will be critical for us to lay out an effective 5-

year plan that can bring the High Needs budget back into a balanced in-year position. 

Forum members are asked to review the current forecast and associated information and 

bring any questions to the meeting.  

      

Page 42



2. Growth trends for EHCPs 

2.1. The table in fig.1 below shows the number of active EHCPs that we are supporting as at the 

1st December 2021.  In the 11 months since January 2021, we have seen a net increase of 

425 plans. In the 12-month period we are assuming this will rise to around 450.  This is 100 

higher than we had forecast based on the historic EHCP trends.  

Fig.1 

 

2.2. National reporting on this data is lagged, so in comparing our position to both the national 

picture and that of our statistical neighbours we are only able to look at data from 1st Jan 

2021.  The table in Fig.2 shows local data, alongside that of our statistical neighbours and 

the national position.  You will note that despite the growth we are experiencing the 

percentage of the population supported by an EHCP in Gloucestershire is lower in both 

instances. 

2.3. This provides us with confidence that we are not an outlier in terms of the pressures that 

the SEND service is facing.    

Fig.2 

 
 

Forum members are asked to consider the local and national EHCP data and bring any 

questions to the meeting. 

3. Longer term forecasting 

3.1. In working on a 5-year model our focus has been on how we achieve an in-year balanced 

budget, so that the growth of the cumulative deficit position slows and ultimately ceases. 

This is in line with the approach that the DfE are taking with other “higher risk” Local 

Authorities with whom they have had recovery discussions. They have worked with them to 

get to a balanced in-year position before agreeing how the accumulated deficit would be 

treated.  It is our understanding that some of the funding for the supplementary grant for 

2022/23 has been retained to support the DfE’s recovery discussions with ‘High Risk’ local 

authorities. 

Page 43



3.2. As we have seen this financial year forecasting the High Needs budget is challenging as 

the EHCP trends have been changing significantly.  We recognise that some of this 

increase in need is driven by the impact of COVID-19, with many children not having had 

access to the stabilising and developmental benefits of early years and statutory education 

in the way that they would normally have done.   

3.3. At the June Forum meeting we would like to approve a 5-year plan for High Needs.  A draft 

version of this plan is shown below (appendix A).  The plan is underpinned by the following 

key assumptions: 

 EHCP growth trends move back in line with historic numbers. A net increase of circa 

350 plans a year; 

 There is continued investment from the DfE and ESFA, in line with the last 3 years to 

meet the rising level of need (not including the additional funding received for 

2022/23 through the supplementary grant); 

 The proportion of children with an EHCP attending mainstream, specialist or 

independent specialist provision remains at current levels; and 

 No increase in top-up funding has been included other than the 2% increase agreed 

this year. 

3.4. Ahead of the School’s Forum meeting in June we would like to test these assumptions with 

the High Needs working group, looking at the impact of adjustments in each of these areas 

with a view to gaining Forum agreement for each of the key assumptions. 

3.5. For example, we know that an increase in the top-up funding in mainstream and specialist 

provision will have a significant cost. However, there is a case that could be made, if we 

can be confident that the consequence of these increases and the focus on supporting 

earlier intervention results in more children able to access mainstream and maintained 

specialist provision, resulting in less use of independent provision, and offsetting the 

increased top-up costs. 

Forum members are asked to review and consider the 5-year plan and bring any questions 

to the meeting.  We would also like Forum to agree for the development of the forecast 

and the underlying assumptions to be a priority for the High Needs working group in the 

spring term. 

4. Update: Joint Additional Needs Transformation Programme 

4.1. In relation to the High Needs budget challenges, there are two key priority areas that the 

JAN transformation programme are focussed on in the new year: 

 Testing and implementation of the new banded funding model; and 

 Provision of significant increase specialist places. 

4.2. In relation to the banded funding model we have completed the first two phases of work, 

which involved finalising the descriptors and developing example provision maps.  Attached 

are the finalised descriptors (appendix B) that have been through extensive consultation 

with key stakeholders across the system.  

Page 44



4.3. Also attached to this report are example provision maps (appendix C) that have been 

developed and costed with school leaders.   

4.4. The next phase which will take place across the spring term is to work with a number of 

individual schools to test the descriptors and develop provision maps for existing 

pupils/students with EHCPs. This will enable us to: 

 Test the descriptors are working as intended; 

 Understand the process and time required to develop provision maps and ensure 

they align with the existing resourcing of the EHCP;  

 Test the model in partnership with schools and parents and carers to ensure that the 

transition to the new model is seamless and doesn’t negatively affect provision. This 

will help inform the wider roll out. 

 Align the costing of provision maps with the descriptors to assess level of funding 

required for each band and how this aligns with exiting funding levels. 

4.5. Assuming that testing and implementation works well, we would be aiming for a wider roll 

out of the new system from September 2022. 

4.6. The rising levels of need are placing significant pressure on the availability specialist 

places.  In addition to the planned opening of the new SEMH specialist provision in 

Brockworth, which will provide an additional 80 places, we are looking at how we can 

significantly increase specialist places in the coming years.  

4.7. The data indicates that, should trends continue as they are, we will need to commission at 

least 100 places a year.  To address this level of need we will: 

 explore the immediate expansion of specialist provision through use of existing 

school properties; 

 Plan the build of 2 new special schools, initially through the free school programme 

bidding process; 

 Explore the potential to extend the use of resource bases attached to mainstream 

provision, particularly at secondary, where there is currently only one resource base 

in operation (there are 6 primary bases). 

4.8. This provision is essential to ensure that we are able to limit the use of high-cost 

independent placements as EHCP numbers continue to rise.  

4.9. A detailed plan is being developed so that we can consult with key stakeholders on the 

development and implementation of these plans. 

4.10. This expansion of specialist provision is supported by government policy and the recent 

announcement to invest £2.6b into specialist capital funding.   

Page 45



Appendix A 

High Needs Block: Five Year Model Data for DfE Template Draft Format v4 Updated 05/01/2022

Finance Summary SUMMID 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

M09 Mitigated Mitigated Mitigated Mitigated Mitigated

High Needs Block Heading Outturn Outturn Outturn Outturn Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Confirmed Confirmed Confirmed Forecast Outturn Outturn Outturn Outturn Outturn

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Alternative provision - places & top ups & services APO 5,440.1            5,120.4            4,994.2            4,994.2            4,994.2            4,994.2            4,994.2            4,994.2            

Alternative provision - Glos Hospital Education HES 1,721.3            1,677.8            1,957.7            1,957.7            1,957.7            1,957.7            1,957.7            1,957.7            

EHCP Costs - College and FE P16 6,629.4            6,563.6            8,312.8            9,472.4            10,763.6          11,638.4          12,655.1          13,772.7          

EHCP Costs - Secondary Post 16 MSS16 266.0                527.7                518.2                526.8                535.6                544.7                554.0                

EHCP Costs - Early Years MSE 230.0                182.5                275.8                282.1                289.2                296.4                303.9                311.5                

EHCP Costs - Primary MSP 7,032.1            7,390.8            8,345.6            8,793.9            9,499.1            10,261.4          11,085.3          11,975.8          

EHCP Costs - Secondary MSS 3,424.5            4,539.9            5,030.6            5,630.6            6,486.0            7,473.2            8,612.8            9,928.3            

Excluded pupils EXC (185.9)              (49.8)                 (216.9)              (216.9)              (216.9)              (216.9)              (216.9)              (216.9)              

LA Services and staffing LAS 3,738.0            3,883.6            3,915.9            4,094.3            4,274.1            4,455.6            4,638.7            4,823.5            

Independent Special Schools ISS 12,409.0          15,213.0          17,236.9          16,996.4          18,251.9          19,125.9          19,772.8          21,428.5          

Restorative Practice RP 172.6                196.9                199.9                203.9                208.0                212.2                216.4                220.8                

Special Centres- Primary SENUP 576.3                556.8                570.3                654.6                654.6                654.6                654.6                654.6                

Special Centres- Secondary SENUS 109.6                99.4                  101.5                108.4                110.8                110.8                110.8                110.8                

Special School Provision- Place Funding SPECPLA 11,911.6          12,854.1          13,599.1          14,428.1          15,402.1          16,355.2          17,310.3          18,207.3          

Special School Provision- Top-up Funding SPECTU 10,581.4          12,544.2          13,412.1          15,011.5          16,405.8          18,098.3          19,982.3          21,820.5          

Special School Teachers Pay and Pension SPECTPP -                    -                    782.5                983.5                1,022.4            1,076.6            1,150.7            1,219.5            

Support Services SUPPS 1,001.7            965.1                1,136.7            1,159.4            1,182.6            1,206.3            1,230.4            1,255.0            

Virtual School VS 587.8                608.6                620.3                657.7                695.3                733.2                771.4                809.8                

High Needs Unallocated UA 61,801.9          61.8                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Commissioning (ISS) COMM 29.5                  30.1                  30.1                  30.7                  31.4                  32.0                  32.6                  33.3                  

PROJECTED IMPACT OF OVERALL CHANGE IN EHCP NUMBERS -10 -                    -                    -                    (160.1)              (158.0)              (160.0)              (160.8)              (161.5)              

Rounding 0.4                     (0.2)                   (0.1)                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Cost 61,802.3          65,736.6          72,377.0          80,832.8          85,600.5          92,380.9          98,841.0          105,647.1        113,699.6        

Funding B/fwd 55,225.4          58,918.7          59,895.3          67,258.0          74,995.3          83,090.3          90,251.3          97,439.3          104,675.0        

Increases/ Projected Increases (High Needs Block) (1,640.8)           4,477.4            6,240.7            6,968.0            6,000.0            6,000.0            6,000.0            6,000.0            

Increases/ Projected Increases (Transfer from Schools Block) -                    -                    882.5                643.0                530.0                530.0                530.0                530.0                530.0                

Recoupment Funding- Base 3,693.3            

Recoupment Funding-Modelled Increase (assume funded 100%) 2,617.4            2,002.8            853.6                597.0                631.0                658.0                705.7                756.6                

Final/ Projected Final Funding 58,918.7          59,895.3          67,258.0          74,995.3          83,090.3          90,251.3          97,439.3          104,675.0        111,961.6        

check net of recoup. 55,225.4         53,584.6         58,944.5         65,828.2         

Deficit for Year 2,883.6            5,841.3            5,119.0            5,837.5            2,510.2            2,129.6            1,401.7            972.1                1,738.0            

Impact of 22/ 23 Additional Supplementary Grant (2,989.0)           

Cumulative Deficit bf 2,883.6            8,724.9            13,843.9          19,681.4          19,202.6          21,332.2          22,733.8          23,706.0          

Cumulative Deficit cf 2,883.6            8,724.9            13,843.9          19,681.4          19,202.6          21,332.2          22,733.8          23,706.0          25,443.9          

P
age 46



 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Special Educational Needs     
Banding Levels for Gloucestershire Pupils 

Cognition and Learning 

Specialist Commissioning Team 

       01452 XXXXX 

bandingworkstream@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

July 2021 

Appendix B

P
age 49

mailto:bandingworkstream@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

Cognition & Learning 
Cognition and Learning (C&L) : 

 

Pupils have/are making insufficient 
progress. 

These pupils can progress in mainstream 
with timely and appropriate interventions. 
(This may involve small group work and 1:1 
interventions). 

 

Pupils experience low level/low frequency 
difficulties with:  

 Written communication, verbal 
communication and numbers. 

 Understanding instructions. 

 Tackling new concepts. 

 Specific learning difficulties  

Pupils are falling behind the average range 
for attainment and progress for age related 

expectations. 

BAND 1 

Pupils may: 

Be able to follow short conversations/instructions in context 

Be able to learn/increase independence skills with additional prompts, guidance etc 

Have mild occasional upset, frustration, anger, distress, embarrassment, concern or withdrawal as a result of difficulties with learning 

Relate well to adults and peers and engage in subject appropriate conversations with some support 

Find some environments difficult to manage and this impacts on their ability to listen and respond  

Listen and respond in partner and/or group situations with occasional prompting, additional visual input and support 

Pupils will require: 

Learning: 

Evidence informed teaching approaches which place emphasis on direct teaching, finely graded tasks, structured multi-sensory techniques, practical tasks.  These should provide 
opportunities for frequent repetition and reinforcement/opportunities for over-learning and are regularly monitored and reviewed 

Programme of study appropriate to a child’s levels of attainments  which is regularly overseen, monitored and evaluated by a qualified teacher/SENCO 

Specific targeted support to develop attention and concentration skills  and independent learning skills 

Pre/post tutoring, by a teacher or appropriately trained LSA, for specific areas of learning which is regularly monitored and reviewed 

Opportunities to work in small group situations, or on a 1:1 basis, with specified support to improve reading comprehension and numeracy skills 

Specific teacher planned modification of curriculum  to take account of evidence based structured programmes of learning to develop literacy and/or numeracy skills, delivered by a 
person trained in the programme delivery which are regularly monitored and evaluated (at least annually) 

Specific teacher planned modification of outcomes (e.g. alternative methods of response) including alternative recording strategies to access the majority of the curriculum (e.g. 
diagrams, mind maps, enhanced use of ICT with appropriate software) and/or frequent support for written tasks, an/or LSA. This may include modification of arrangements for 
examinations 

Teaching approaches which place emphasis on direct teaching, finely graded tasks, structured multi-sensory techniques and practical tasks. These should provide opportunities for 
frequent repetition and reinforcement/opportunities for over learning. These approaches should be regularly monitored for their effectiveness in supporting appropriate pupil 
progress 

Communication: 

Frequent, shared support for mediation of the language environment e.g. use of Makaton, simplifying/repetition of instructions, checking understanding of instructions, understanding 
increasingly complex social concepts/language 

Specific cues for changes/instructions e.g. visual, use of name and warning in advance 

Safe: 

Predictable, structured routine. This may include use of visual timetables, now and next approach and use of workstation 

Happy: 

A scribe or support for writing in other ways, (including use of ICT) especially if learning to write is not the main purpose of the task 

Enhanced teacher planning for key stage transfers and enhanced support plans for year on year moves 

P
age 50



 

Cognition & Learning 
Cognition and Learning (C&L) : 

Pupils have cognitive and intellectual 
difficulties which have an effect on their 
ability to actively engage with parts of the 
school day  

 

Typically pupils require an enhanced 
pupil/adult ratio so that they can receive 
specific support, supervision and 
interventions in order to make expected 
progress, and/or they need to work within 
a small group for a proportion of the day. 

BAND 2 
Pupils may: 

Have difficulties in areas of comprehension, asking and answering questions 

Have difficulties with organising self and belongings which sometimes impact on their ability to participate in learning independently 

Use visual communication to support learning in some activities 
 
Have difficulties in planning and completing some tasks in comparison to peers which is impacting on ability to learn new skills meaning slow progress is being made despite targeted 
and appropriate interventions 

Have attainment in core subjects (primary age – at least 18 months below, secondary age – attainment significantly below their peer group and a reading age at least ****) and 
progress is being made in response to targeted intervention 
 
Have some difficulty using language to organise their thoughts and ideas to be able to recount clearly an event or tell a story to a range of communication partners 
 
Relate well to adults and peers and are able to engage in subject appropriate conversations with some support 
 
Improved understanding when reduced language is used, additional time is given and/or instructions are repeated 
 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision in Band 1: 

Learning: 

Some modification of the curriculum, small group work and regular adult support for its delivery in order to make expected progress 

Some  support with understanding and recording in order to access the curriculum and make expected progress 

Additional support to generalise skills learned across curriculum contexts 

Additional resources  to access teaching and learning  

Communication: 

A structured, well evaluated intervention designed to enhance children’s language skills e.g. Talk Boost  These interventions require that staff  deliver the provision as intended.   

Happy: 

Explicit teaching of routines and interpersonal skills to facilitate their inclusion  

Safe: 

Additional support at break/lunch times (to include lunch clubs) because of delayed interpersonal skills and slow acquisition of age appropriate eating skills 

 

  

P
age 51



 

Cognition & Learning 
Cognition and Learning (C&L) : 

Pupils have cognitive and intellectual 
difficulties which have an effect on their 
ability to actively engage with the school 
day.  

Typically pupils need regular, additional 
time from a range of adults in order to 
implement specific support strategies so 
they can make expected progress.  

They may make frequent demands for 
support because of their learning 
difficulties  

The additional needs should be considered 
long term.  

 

 

BAND 3 

Pupils may: 

Have significant difficulties communicating with peers independently and effectively 

Have difficulty using language to effectively communicate  their message 

Have difficulty understanding language in order to reason e.g. makes inferences, predict outcomes or draw conclusions 

Have improved understanding when language is broken down, repeated and simplified  

Have significant difficulties in planning and completing most tasks in comparison to peers and find it difficult to apply new skills and concepts 

Find it difficult at times of transition or when changes are made to their routine   

Be willing to follow instructions but often do not understand what is being communicated 

Have low levels of understanding that can cause them to behave in a way that impacts on relationships 

Relate well towards adults and peers but will often use phrases/behaviours which can be out of context 

Have attainment in core subjects (primary age – at least 2 years  below, secondary age – attainment consistently significantly below their peer group) and limited evidence of progress 
 
Have difficulties with organising self and belongings which impact on their ability to participate in learning independently 
 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision in Bands 1 and 2 

Learning: 

Regular support with understanding and recording in order to access the curriculum and make  progress in line with individual targets 

Communication: 

Regular support with alternative communication strategies in order to access the curriculum and make  progress in line with individual targets 

Safe: 

Additional support at break/lunch times (including lunch clubs) because of delayed interpersonal skills, limited understanding in relation to safety and risks and slow acquisition of age 
appropriate eating skills 

Happy: 

Specific daily input to increase self help, independence and interpersonal skills 

Carefully planned inclusion to access all curriculum areas 

 

 

  

P
age 52



 

Cognition & Learning 
Cognition and Learning (C&L) : 

Pupils have significant cognitive and 
intellectual difficulties which have an effect 
on their ability to actively engage with the 
majority of the school day. 

Typically pupils require frequent, specific 
interventions on a daily basis from a range 
of adults in order to make expected 
progress. This progress is likely to be made 
in small steps in their primary area of need.  

 

 

BAND 4 

Pupils may: 

Have delayed cognitive development, considerable difficulties in acquiring literacy and numeracy skills and understanding concepts 
Be unable to understand the routines and expectations within their environment without daily preparation and explanation including use of pictures, symbols, objects, signs and social 
stories 

Have learning needs and difficulties with understanding which may make them  vulnerable in social situations or in the community 

Struggle to listen and respond without frequent and consistent support and prompting 

Have difficulties following classroom routines and expectations that impact on their and others’ learning 

Have low levels of understanding that can cause them to behave inappropriately which impact heavily on relationships 

Be willing to follow instructions but often do not understand what is being communicated  

Manage age appropriate self-care skills when they are broken down into small steps and/or supervised by an adult  

Not be able to initiate and engage in age-related social interaction without adult prompts and guidance/support  

Have attainment in core subjects (primary age – at least 3 years  below, secondary age – attainment consistently significantly below their peer group, alternative curriculum pathways 
may need to be explored) 
 
Have significant difficulty understanding language in order to reason e.g. makes inferences, predicts outcomes or draws conclusions 

 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision in Bands 1, 2 and 3: 

Learning: 

Significant modification of the academic and social curriculum and appropriately trained adult support for its delivery in order to make progress in line with individual targets 

Termly advice from Advisory Teaching Service (Cognition & Learning Team)  for mainstream setting staff on how to enable full access to the curriculum and evaluate progress 

Communication: 

Frequent support with alternative communication strategies in order to access the curriculum and make expected progress 

Safe: 

Mediation of the learning environment through individual planning and support 

Happy: 

Daily explicit input to increase self-help, independence and interpersonal skills 

Carefully planned inclusion opportunities, supported in part by additional adult support. 

 

 

P
age 53



Cognition & Learning 

Cognition and Learning (C&L) : SLD 

These pupils have significant cognitive and 
intellectual difficulties which have an effect 
on their ability to actively engage with any 
of the school day. 

They will need interventions for the vast 
majority of the time to facilitate alternative 
communication and support physical 
and/or medical and/or behavioural needs. 

 

 

BAND 5 

Pupils may: 

Have delayed cognitive development, considerable difficulties in acquiring literacy and numeracy skills and understanding concepts 

Experience high levels of difficulties which impact on concentration and ability to engage with work and are unable to manage these difficulties independently 

Be unable to sequence their ideas and thoughts to be able to recount clearly an event to tell a story to a range of communication partners 

Have significant difficulties in understanding and carrying out simple instructions independently or in line with age, including with repetition, clarification and augmented 
communication systems 

Have communication needs which impact severely on ability to take full part in learning opportunities 

Not understand the need to organise self and equipment, including those needed to manage physical/medical condition, and are unable to so independently or in line with peers 

Be unable to dress/undress in line with peers but can assist with certain garments 

Require visuals/signing etc. to support their communication in all activities  

Interfere in the activities of others 

Use signs and symbols but will also have some language and engage in simple conversations 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision in Bands 1, 2, 3 and 4: 

Learning: 

A high adult/pupil ratio throughout  the school day to enable access to the curriculum and support with communication development and meeting social, emotional, physical and 
sensory needs and/or ensuring safety  

An individually designed delivered and monitored academic and social curriculum in order to make expect progress 

Personalised learning pathways that recognise unique and changing learning patterns 

Communication: 

Constant support with alternative communication strategies 

Safe: 

Regular risk assessments will be required 

Ongoing multi-professional support and advice for planning, reviews and to evaluate progress in relation to the education setting and significant family support 

Happy: 

Carefully planned inclusion opportunities, supported by additional adult support 

Additional and different resources and specialist equipment, such as appropriate furniture and adapted toilet facilities and access to therapeutic recourses, sensory room e.g. soft play, 
music therapy and hydrotherapy 
 

 

 

 

P
age 54



Cognition & Learning 

Cognition & Learning : PMLD 

Typically these pupils have complex needs 
which require specific 1:1 adult 
interventions for the vast majority of the 
time to facilitate alternative 
communication and support physical 
and/or medical and/or behavioural needs. 

These pupils have significant cognitive and 
intellectual impairments and/or physical 
needs which have an effect on their ability 
to actively engage with any of the school 
day without support. They are also likely to 
present with sensory impairments and/or 
severely challenging behaviour (including 
self injurious behaviour) and/or physical 
difficulties. 

Requiring constant adult support 
throughout the day. 

 

 

 

BAND 5 

Pupils may: 

Have delayed cognitive development, considerable difficulties in acquiring literacy and numeracy skills and understanding concepts 

Experience high levels of difficulties which impact on concentration and ability to engage with work and are unable to manage these difficulties independently 

Be unable to sequence their ideas and thoughts to be able to recount clearly an event to tell a story to a range of communication partners 

Have significant difficulties in understanding and carrying out simple instructions independently or in line with age, including with repetition, clarification and augmented 
communication systems 

Have communication needs which impact severely on ability to take full part in learning opportunities 

Not understand the need to organise self and equipment, including those needed to manage physical/medical condition, and are unable to so independently or in line with peers 

Be unable to dress/undress in line with peers but can assist with certain garments 

Require visuals/signing etc. to support their communication in all activities  

Interfere in the activities of others 

Use signs and symbols but will also have some language and engage in simple conversations 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision in Bands 1, 2, 3 and 4: 

Learning: 

A high adult/pupil ratio throughout  the school day to enable access to the curriculum and support with communication development and meeting social, emotional, physical and 
sensory needs and/or ensuring safety  

An individually designed delivered and monitored academic and social curriculum in order to make expect progress 

Personalised learning pathways that recognise unique and changing learning patterns 

Communication: 

Constant support with alternative communication strategies 

Safe: 

Regular risk assessments will be required 

Ongoing multi-professional support and advice for planning, reviews and to evaluate progress in relation to the education setting and significant family support 

Happy: 

Carefully planned inclusion opportunities, supported by additional adult support 

Additional and different resources and specialist equipment, such as appropriate furniture and adapted toilet facilities and access to therapeutic recourses, sensory room e.g. soft play, 
music therapy and hydrotherapy 
 

 

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Educational Needs                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Banding Levels for Gloucestershire Pupils 

For use by XXXXXX 
 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

 

 

 

 

 

Specialist Commissioning Team 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                       01452 XXXXX 

XXXXXX@gloucestershire.gov.uk    

Dec  2020 

 

There needs to be recognition that a clinical diagnosis often identified at birth, 
but not always, informs the provision required to meet needs. 

 

Some CYP will acquire S/P needs later in their childhood because of trauma, 
accident, illness or infection.  

 

The impact for their development and learning is greater than their diagnosis 
and therefore the band grade descriptors reflect this 

P
age 57

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/
mailto:XXXXXX@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

 

Any request for High Needs Banding Funding for a child with a sensory impairment/physical disability  will need to include 
the following; 

 
 Evidence of  ongoing assessment or  diagnosis from a medical professional evidencing the child or young person has  sensory  impairment or physical disability 
which impacts their ability to learn, undertake tasks and participate in the activities of everyday life safely in the same way as their peers.   In general this includes 
evidence that  the CYP has: 

  permanent hearing loss    or  a diagnosis of hearing impairment associated with significant difficulties or disorder in receptive and/or expressive language 
skills. 

 
sight impaired  or severely sight  impaired. CYP  who have a clinically diagnosed visual impairment, that have distance vision of 6/18 (Snellen) or worse with 
glasses, if worn. They may also: 

 Have reduced fields of vision 

 Have deteriorating vision 

 Be significantly impacted by physical  disability including medical needs 
 
It is recognised that: 

 every child or young person with sensory/physical needs  has unique needs and requirements which require schools and settings to plan their 
inclusion and access to learning carefully  

 the impact  of sensory impairment or physical disability  is long term and may be complex  affecting  communication, mobility and other key 
aspects of life including independence  and a CYP’s  social emotional needs and well being. (For some CYP there will be  evidence of degenerative 
condition arising from a named condition/diagnosis which will require re-assessment over time. Some CYP will have a diagnosis of 
deafblindness/multi sensory impairment 

 not all children and young people with sensory or physical needs will have cognitive impairment. However, their difficulties may significantly 
impact his/her access to the curriculum. They may require: adult assistance to  support communication and understanding ,access  learning and 
the curriculum  and/or to manage self care tasks. 

 there may be other co –existing  associated conditions e.g. autism  or epilepsy in addition to the primary need ( Sensory/physical) 

 some children or young people will have  normal development  but acquire  sensory impairment/physical needs through   illness, accident or 
trauma  

 CYP with S/P are at risk of poor SEMH and may require support to build positive relationships 

P
age 58

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Sensory and Physical    

Typically, these  children 
and young people have a  
diagnosed sensory 
impairment or disability 
and/or health condition that 
is: 

 well managed 
through appropriate 
aids and/or 
equipment 

 well controlled 
through the advice 
on their individual 
Health care Plan 
/individual risk 
assessments 

Their individual needs and 
requirements will require 
careful planning, reasonable 
adjustments and flexibilities 
as well as   long term 
assistance/intervention  from 
others to ensure that they are 
safe in school. 

Their difficulties may impact 
on their SEMH &well being 
and behaviour, as well as their 
inclusion and communication 
and social interactions with 
others. Their use of language, 
ability to  communicate and 
socially interact with others 
and develop relationships and 

. 

BAND 1  
Pupils may: 

 Be able to manage  their  aids and individual equipment, e.g.  if prompted and  supervised by an adult 

 Be able to manage  therapeutic and  self-care needs relating to their condition if prompted and supervised  by an adult 

 Find some environments  and resources difficult to access and  manage without prior planning , e.g  ICT suite, TV 

 Have difficulties adapting to new/specific environments  

 Be able to  use language for a range of functions  

 Relate well to adults and peers and be able to engage in subject appropriate conversations with some support. 

 Have difficulties Be able  to learn with additional prompts and appropriately differential teaching and materials 

 Be able to access PE, practical lessons and activities with some adult assistance, e.g. prompts, assistance with clothing, physical assistance  
 

Pupils will  require: 

Learn 

 Teaching and learning tasks are appropriately differentiated  using approached which enable pupils with S/P needs to learn effectively .e.g . 
appropriately modified  tasks, multi-sensory techniques, opportunities for frequent repetition and reinforcement/opportunities for over-
learning. These should be regularly monitored and reviewed to ensure appropriate pupil progress 

 Teachers should have a secure understanding of the factors which inhibit pupils with S/P and how best to over come these using evidence based 
interventions to plug gaps and enable progress 

 Informed teachers who know how to adapt teaching to include and support the education of CYP with S/P 

 Specific targeted support to develop attention and concentration skills, time off task and independent learning skills. 

 Programme of study appropriate to the child/young person’s levels of attainment, rather than Key Stage, which is regularly overseen, monitored 
and evaluated by a qualified teacher/SENDCO with advice from a specialist teacher 

 Pre/post tutoring, by a teacher or suitably qualified LSA, for specific areas of learning across the curriculum  - language development is regularly 
monitored and reviewed to ensure appropriate pupil progress. 

 Structured programmes of learning to develop literacy and/or numeracy skills, delivered by a person trained in the programme delivery, which 
are regularly monitored and evaluated.   

 Access to ICT /recording strategies 

Safe 

 Individual adaptations to the environment e.g. ramps, toilets, quiet carpeted areas.  

 Appropriate training for staff in manual handling and/or personal care as required may be needed. 

 Whole school awareness  training of the impact of S/P/AAC 

 Additional support to enable the pupil to be safely monitored and supported with self administering medication e.g. asthma. 

P
age 59

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

 

may be affected  

Even with QFT their needs will 
interfere with their ability to 
access  the curriculum and 
learn without  aids or 
equipment, additional 
planning, assistance and  
specific intervention. 

  

Daily assistance  to manage their  aids/equipment/safe manual handling  and health care needs as identified on their individual  risk 
assessments/IHCP 

 Involvement of a specialist teacher , i.e. a qualified teacher of the deaf, qualified teacher of visual impairment of multi sensory impairment)  in 
line with  Gloucestershire Eligibility Criteria for sensory support  

 Assistance for practical tasks or activities/lessons  or PE 

 Enhanced teacher planning for key stage transfers and enhanced support plans for year on year moves. 

 Support to  manage unsupervised times including break and lunch times 

Happy 

 Frequent, shared support for mediation of the language environment, e.g., simplifying/repetition of instructions, checking understanding of 
instructions, understanding increasingly complex social concepts/language etc.  

 Predictable and structured routine.  This may include use of visual timetables and use of workstation.  

 Specific cues for changes/instructions, e.g. visual, use of name and notice in advance.  

 Pre- post tutoring- teaching of specific new language 

 Opportunities to work in small group situations, with specified support, to facilitate the development of social interaction with peers and 
develop friendships.  

 to access the majority of the curriculum ,e.g .diagrams, mind maps, enhanced use of ICT with appropriate software and/or frequent support for 
written tasks.  This includes modification of arrangements for all tests, assessments and  examinations. 

 

P
age 60

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Sensory and Physical 

In addition to Band 1  typically 
these pupils are impacted  by 
their diagnosis or needs.  

They   have limited 
independence in  safely 
managing aids/equipment, 
medical interventions required 
for their condition, e.g personal 
care, movement, radio aid etc, 
daily therapeutic plan.  

The effect  of their 
sensory/physical disability 
impacts of their understanding 
and processing of spoken 
language and their 
communication and interaction 
with others. 

Their emotional and mental 
health may be significantly 
impacted or they are at risk of 
poor mental well being in later 
life. 

They require enhanced 
pupil/adult ratio so they can 
receive specific support, 
supervision and interventions in 
order to make expected 
progress, and/or they need to 
work within a small group for a 
proportion of the day. 

BAND 2 
 

Pupils may: 

 Be able to manage  their  aids and individual equipment,  if prompted and  assisted by an adult  

 Be able to manage  daily therapeutic and  self-care needs relating to their condition if assisted  and supervised  by an adult 

 Find some environments  and resources difficult to access and  manage without prior planning and assistance, eg. school trips,  
enlarged text, or  minor acoustic adjustments to the environment  

 Have some difficulties in accessing the physical environment, facilities and equipment, whole school and class activities, including 
assessments, practical  lessons, information and communication technology. 

 Have difficulties accessing  new or specific environments, e.g. food technology lab  

 Have difficulties in understanding or responding to verbal cues.  

 Have difficulties in communication through spoken language/interactions with peers and adults.  

 Have difficulties with language-related topics and understanding new/complex concepts.  

 Have the tendency to rely on peers, observing behaviour and activities to cue into expected responses. 

 Require  specialist assessment and focussed individual  plan delivered on a daily basis  e.g. speech and language plan or 
physiotherapy program 

 Relate well to adults and peers and be able to engage in partner, small group or class work  with assistance  

 Have difficulties with physical aspects of lessons and recording requiring alternative means ,e.g ICT or using scissors 

  Be able  to learn with additional prompts and appropriately differential teaching and materials 

 Be able to access PE, practical lessons and activities with some adult assistance, e.g. prompts, assistance with clothing, physical 
assistance , deliver adapted or modified activity ,e.g Boccia or Goal ball 
 

In addition to band 1  these pupils will  require: 

Learn 
 Modification of language content across the curriculum to allow access to concepts, as well as an individualised plan of teaching 

English to develop speaking, listening, reading and auditory skills. 
Support to mediate the language environment especially in group situations  and regular checking of understanding of language in 
key subjects and  for language intensive lessons and or/enhanced use of visual stimuli 

 Access to specialist teacher for assessment, monitoring of progress, advice and guidance to school staff to implement strategies to 
support an individual needs and maximise learning. This includes training and advice to staff.  

 Access to specialist equipment and ICT   including audiology and technical support including some specialised equipment. e.g. 
radio aids, low vision aids  

 Suitably trained in class support to access a significant portion of the curriculum including English and Math, to reinforce skills 
being learnt, and, to mediate the environment for key subjects. This   includes the production of modified materials e.g. enlarged 
text . 

P
age 61

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

They may have dual impairment, 
e.g MSI or co-existing conditions, 
e,g. ASC or epilepsy. 

 

 

 Some additional supervision for practical subjects, e.g. Science and PE. Some production of materials. Liaison with QTVI and 
implementation of strategies. 

 Access other specialist equipment and materials 

 Specific targeted support to develop attention and concentration skills,and independent learning skills. 

 Evidence informed teaching approaches which place emphasis on direct teaching, finely graded tasks, structured multi-sensory 
techniques, practical tasks, which provide opportunities for frequent repetition and reinforcement/opportunities for over-
learning and are regularly monitored and reviewed to ensure appropriate pupil progress. 

 Programme of study appropriate to the child/young person’s levels of attainment, rather than Key Stage, which is regularly 
overseen, monitored and evaluated by a qualified teacher/SENDCO. 

 Pre/post tutoring, by a teacher or suitably qualified LSA, for specific areas of learning which is regularly monitored and reviewed 
to ensure appropriate pupil progress. 

 Specific teacher planned modification of curriculum in order to take account of evidence based structured programmes of 
learning to develop literacy and/or numeracy skills, delivered by a person trained in the programme delivery, which are regularly 
monitored and evaluated.   

 Specific teacher planned modification of outcomes (eg alternative methods of response) including alternative recording strategies 
to access the majority of the curriculum (eg diagrams, mind maps, enhanced use of ICT with appropriate software and/or frequent 

support for written tasks.  This may include modification of arrangements for examinations. 

Safe 

 Require individual adaptations to the environment e.g. steps, blinds, lighting 

 Appropriate training for  staff in manual handling and/or personal care so they can carry out individual programs as advised by 
professionals on a regular basis 

 Significant reasonable adjustments and flexibilities, e.g sensitive timetabling 

 Additional support to enable the pupil to be safely monitored and supported with self administering medication e.g. medical 
conditions may include epilepsy and asthma. 

 Daily assistance  to manage aids/equipment/safe manual handling  and health care needs as identified on their individual  risk 
assessments/IHCP 

 Daily assistance to manage eating and drinking at break or lunch times 

 Involvement of a specialist teacher , i.e. a qualified teacher of the deaf, qualified teacher of visual impairment or multi sensory 
impairment)  in line with  Gloucestershire Eligibility Criteria for sensory support  

 Assistance for practical tasks or activities/lessons  or PE 

 Enhanced teacher planning so they have safe and  equitable curriculum access with their peers 

 Daily communication with home to enable continuity of approach 

Happy 

P
age 62

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 Frequent, individual support for mediation of the language environment, e.g. Sign/Gesture or use of Makaton, for 
simplifying/repetition of instructions, checking understanding of instructions, checking  understanding increasingly complex social 
concepts/language etc.  

 Daily  sessions of an evidence based intervention  to facilitate the development of  language and communication skills to support 
social interaction/ social competence with peers and develop friendships.   . 

 Opportunities to work in small group situations, with specified support, to facilitate the development of social interaction with 
peers and develop friendships.  

 Regular prompting, additional visual input and support from an adult to support communication interaction with others 

 Support for non structured time at break or lunchtime to take part in activities with peers 

P
age 63

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Sensory and Physical 

In general these learners will have, 
significant long term needs which 
impact on many aspects of learning 
and life.  They may also have 
additional learning needs have 

For example, 

 medically diagnosed hearing 
loss arising from permanent 
conductive hearing and/or  
sensory-neural hearing  loss   

 physical disability which 
affects mobility, gross and 
fine motor skills and requires 
individual equipment, e.g. 
walking aid, and/or splints.  a 
They may need daily 
specialist programmes for 
co-ordination skills and  
input with health care 
regimes.   

 medically diagnosed visual 
impairment 

 

Typically  these pupils need daily, 
additional time/assistance from  
familiar and trusted adults   who are 
knowledgeable about the child’s 
individual needs, equipment and 
requirements and how to manage 
these effectively so the child is 

BAND 3  

Pupils may: 

 Require adult assistance to  access use   aids and individual equipment  

 Undertake  daily therapeutic and  self-care needs relating to their condition if assisted  by an adult 

 Find environments and resources difficult to access and  manage without prior planning and assistance ,eg.PE and practical . 

 Have difficulties in communication through spoken language/interactions with peers and adults and experience difficulties with language-
related topics and in understanding new/complex concepts.  

 Be unable to understand or access the curriculum without a significant level of modification  . They may find it difficult to listen  and manage  
background noise or be withdrawn and wait for cues from others in the class 

 Experience difficulties accessing the speech of adults and peer group in school without suitably trained individual assistance, They may have  
difficulties in making their voice heard arising from sensory or physical  impairment which impacts significantly on their speech clarity or 
expressive language. They may use alternative or augmentative communication systems e.g. communication booklet, PECS, visuals, to  
support their  communication.   

 Have difficulties in understanding or responding to verbal cues  and persistently appear to ignore and/or misunderstand instructions. They 
may struggle to  attend, listen and respond without frequent and consistent support and prompting 

 Have frustrations and anxieties arising from a difficulty to communicate, leading to associated behavioural difficulties and difficulty forming 
relationships with their peers. They may rely on peers, observing behaviour and activities to cue into expected responses.  

 Have difficulties in achieving independent self-care skills 

 Be unable to visually access board work and require  enlarged print for most reading materials 

 Experience high levels of  emotional stress and physical fatigue 

  Require  specialist assessment and focussed individual plan delivered  on a daily basis  e.g. OT or physiotherapy program 

In addition to bands 1 & 2  these pupils may require: 

Learn 

 Suitably trained in class support to access a significant portion of the curriculum (key subjects), for mediation of the environment for key 
subjects (English and Maths - whole class and some reinforcement of skills being learnt). 

 Significant mediation and/or adaptation of curriculum materials and adult assistance in order to access and participate in the curriculum and 
assessments.. 

 Daily and on-going adult intervention to facilitate curricular access and ensure safety 

 Daily support to develop social competence and emotional well being. 

 Daily communication with home to enable continuity of approach 

 Daily  sessions of an evidence based intervention  or approach to facilitate the development of  language and communication skills  and /or 
literacy and numeracy 

 Access to specialist equipment and ICT  and low vision aids as required 

P
age 64

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

ready to learn effectively. This 
includes daily assistance to manage  
to primary care needs and to  
implement specific support 
strategies or alternative approaches 
to recording so they can  stay  safe, 
learn and make progress.  

 

 Suitably trained in class support to access a significant portion of the curriculum (key subjects), for mediation of the environment for key 
subjects (English and Maths - whole class and some reinforcement of skills being learnt). 

 Supervision for practical subjects, e.g. Science and PE.  

 Awareness training for all staff 

 Specific targeted support for recording, e.g scribing . 

 Programme of study appropriate to the child/young person’s levels of attainment, rather than Key Stage, which is regularly overseen, 
monitored and evaluated by a qualified teacher/SENDCO to accelerate progress and narrow attainment gaps with peers. 

 Pre/post tutoring, by a teacher or suitably qualified LSA, for at least 50% of curriculum which is regularly monitored and reviewed to ensure 
appropriate pupil progress. 

 Specific teacher planned modification of outcomes (eg alternative methods of response) including alternative recording strategies to access 
the majority of the curriculum (eg diagrams, mind maps, enhanced use of ICT with appropriate software and/or frequent support for written 
tasks.  This may include modification of arrangements for examinations. 

Safe 

 High level  of  reasonable adjustments and flexibilities, e.g. sensitive timetabling 

 Access to audiology and technical support and appropriate use of FM systems if applicable and suitably trained adult  to support frequently 
(daily), check audiological aids. 

 Access to  a range of specialised equipment across the learning day  

 Access to a range of equipment to support mobility  or movement around site 

 Minor acoustic adjustments to the environment  

 Input from suitability trained adult to mediate the visual environment and  significant level of adaptations / modifications needed to the 
curriculum and  to work on specific programmes of work developed in conjunction with  the support of an AT (QTOD/QMSI/QTVI) 

 High level of assistance or supervision for practical subjects and PE/physical activity  

 Enhanced use of visual stimuli and adapted texts 

Happy 

 Mediation of the language environment especially in group situations and regular checking of understanding of language in key subjects. 

 Suitably trained in class support to access a significant portion of the curriculum each day and for language intensive lessons.  

 Daily support to develop social competence and emotional well being. 

 Carefully planned inclusion opportunities, supported by additional adult support.  

P
age 65

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Sensory and Physical 

Sensory and Physical(S&P) : 

Typically these pupils require frequent 
specific interventions or assistance on a 
daily basis from a range of adults in 
order to make expected progress. This 
progress is likely to be made in small 
steps in their primary area of need. 

These pupils  may have; 

 permanent hearing loss This 
could be an acquired hearing 
loss, congenital or progressive 
hearing loss.   They will wear 
hearing aids or be cochlear 
implant users or similar   

 a clinically diagnosed  vision 
impairment or moderate -
severe bi-lateral field loss.   

 severe physical disability with 
severe impact.  They have 
limited mobility but have some 
independence for positioning 
and/or transfers.   

 severe long term medical 
condition and require support 
to manage regular and complex 
personal care/medical 
interventions.  These pupils  
may require emergency 
medication and/or a medical 
procedure in an emergency.     

BAND 4   

Pupils may: 

 Be unable to manage  their  aids and individual equipment unless  assisted by an adult 

 Be unable to manage  daily therapeutic and  self-care needs relating to their condition unless  assisted by an adult. 
They can manage sometimes but unable to manage these difficulties independently or in line with peers in all 
situations.  

 Be unable to access  to safely  access the physical environment,, whole school and class activities, including 
assessments, practical  lessons, PE, information and communication technology with a high level of adult assistance 
and facilitation 

 Have difficulties in communicating and interacting with peers and adults unless facilitated by suitably trained adult 

 Have difficulties with language-related topics and understanding new/complex concepts unless facilitated by suitably 
trained adult 

 Require   a specialist approach  delivered across the learning day on a daily basis  e.g. enlarged resources modified 
/differentiated across the curriculum  

 Have  significant SEMH needs or a diagnosed mental health condition which impact on their behaviour, peer 
interaction and learning on a daily basis 

 Experience high or fluctuating  levels of  emotional stress/anxiety  and physical fatigue which require positive 
management by a sensitive and suitably trained/knowledgeable adult  across the day 

 Have significant difficulties communicating with peers independently and effectively. 

 Have sensory or mobility needs that impact significantly on equitable access to the curriculum/school 

In addition to previous bands pupils will require: 

Learn 

 High level of modification of language content across the curriculum to allow access to concepts, as well as an 
individualised plan of teaching English to develop speaking, listening, reading and auditory skills. 

 Suitable /trained in class support for curriculum support – mediation of the language environment especially in group 
situations and regular checking of understanding of language in key subjects, for language intensive lessons and to 
check audiological equipment. Enhanced use of visual stimuli 

 Access to audiology and technical support including some specialised equipment. e.g. radio aids. 

 Access to specialist equipment and ICT  and low vision aids as required 

 Carefully planned inclusion to access all curriculum areas. 

 Specific teacher planned modification of outcomes (eg alternative methods of response) including alternative 
recording strategies to access the majority of the curriculum (eg diagrams, mind maps, enhanced use of ICT with 
appropriate software and/or frequent support for written tasks.  This may include modification of arrangements for 
examinations. 

P
age 66

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

Assistance  across the day  to support recording, /reading /communicating  ,ICT etc 

Safe 

 A high level of  individual adaptations  or modifications to the environment e.g. lift, hoist, intimate care suite 

  Assistance   over the day to manage their  aids/equipment/safe manual handling  and health care needs as identified 
on their individual  risk assessments/IHCP 

 Appropriate training for  staff in manual handling and/or personal care so they can carry out individual  transfers or 
programs as advised by professionals across the day 

 High level  of reasonable adjustments and modification , e.g sensitive timetabling  in secondary schools 

  A high level  involvement of a specialist teacher( at least 6 contacts pa) , i.e. a qualified teacher of the deaf, qualified 
teacher of visual impairment of multi sensory impairment)  in line with  Gloucestershire Eligibility Criteria for sensory 
support  

 Daily input from suitability trained adult to mediate the visual environment for most of the day, to work on specific 
programmes of work developed by QTVI, significant level of adaptations / modifications to the . Supervision for 
practical subjects. 
Happy 

 Frequent, individual  support for mediation of the language environment, e.g.Sign/Gesture or use of Makaton, 
simplifying/repetition of instructions, checking understanding of instructions, understanding increasingly complex 
social concepts/language etc. .Predictable, structured routine.  This may include use of visual timetables and use of 
workstation.  

 Specific cues for changes/instructions, eg visual, use of name and notice in advance across the learning day  

 Pre- post tutoring- teaching of specific new language and time to embed and extend  usage 

 Assistance across the day  to facilitate the development of  language and communication skills to support social 
interaction with peers and develop friendships.  

 Regular prompting, additional visual input and support from an adult to support communication interaction with 
others across the learning day 

 

P
age 67

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Sensory and Physical 

Sensory and Physical(S&P) : 

Typically these pupils have severe and 
complex needs which require specific 
focussed adult interventions for the vast 
majority of the time to facilitate alternative 
communication and support physical and/or 
medical and/or behavioural needs. This 
could include 1-1 work, targeted partner, 
focussed small group work or 
facilitation/assistance to access learning 
with their peers, e.g. scribing, reader etc 

These pupils : 

 have a permanent hearing loss. This 
could be an acquired hearing loss, 
congenital or progressive hearing 
loss.   They may wear hearing aids, 
cochlear implants s or auditory 
brainstem implant.   

 have severe sight impairment as 
identified by a medical professional.  

 may be deaf blind. 

 have a severe physical disability 
which impacts on  fine and/or gross 
motor function and mobility/motor 
function.   

 have multiple needs and 
requirements associated with their 
diagnosis/ses, 

 

BAND 5   

Pupils may: 
 Be unable to manage  their  aids and individual equipment unless  supported by an adult 

 Be unable to manage  daily therapeutic and  self-care needs relating to their condition unless  supported by an adult   

 Be unable to access  to safely  access the physical environment, whole school and class activities, including assessments, practical  
lessons, PE, information and communication technology without  a high level of adult assistance  

 Be unable to  communicate and interact with peers and adults unless facilitated by suitably trained adult 

 Have difficulties understanding new/complex concepts unless facilitated by suitably trained adult 

 Require   a specialist approach  delivered across the learning day on a daily basis  e.g. enlarged resources modified /differentiated 
across the curriculum  

 Have  significant SEMH needs or a diagnosed mental health condition which significantly impact on their behaviour, peer 
interaction and learning during the day 

 Experience high or fluctuating  levels of  emotional stress/anxiety  and physical fatigue which require positive management by a 
sensitive and suitably trained/knowledgeable adult  during the day 

 Have significant difficulties communicating with peers independently and effectively without a high level o adult assistance. 

 Have sensory or mobility needs that impact significantly on equitable access to the curriculum/school 

 Use augmentative and alternative communication system e.g. communication booklet, PECS, Makaton, BSL ,touch cuing, sign 
supported English, objects of reference, visuals etc. as primary/only communication.  

 Have significant difficulties listening and/or responding even with high levels of support.  

 Be dependent on assistive technology and/of support for most curriculum access, e.g alternative to handwriting 

In addition to  previous bands   these pupils will  require: 

Learn 

 An individually designed curriculum in order to make expected  or small step progress. They may have a degenerative condition and 
lose skills or knowledge .They require a  high level of assistance  to learn and develop proficiency in reading and writing or  an 
alternative approach such as Braille or Moon or communication system. They will to use specific individual aids across the day,e.g 
enlarger/VI kit 

 high level of input from suitability trained adult to implement programmes of work, produce resources, adapt/modify materials as 
advised by specialist , to ensure safety and promoting independence 

 Ongoing multi-professional support and advice for planning, reviews and evaluation of progress, in relation to the education setting 
and/or family support. 

 Access to frequent support for staff, advice about the auditory and visual environment, training for staff and  if appropriate direct 
teaching from a qualified teacher for multisensory impairment/deafblindness 

 Access to BSL or other sign systems for which interpreters are required to access mainstream lessons.  

 High level of modification of language content across the curriculum to allow access to concepts, as well as an individualised plan of 

P
age 68

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

teaching English to develop speaking, listening, reading and auditory skills. 

 Carefully planned access and support to access the curriculum each day – mediation of the language environment especially in 
group situations and regular checking of understanding of language in key subjects, for language intensive lessons and to check 
audiological equipment. or enhanced use of visual stimuli 

 

Safe 

 Daily assistance  to manage their  aids/equipment/safe manual handling  and health care needs as identified on their individual  risk 
assessments/IHCP 

 involvement of a specialist teacher , i.e. a qualitied teacher of the deaf, qualified teacher of visual impairment of multi sensory 
impairment)  in line with  Gloucestershire Eligibility Criteria for sensory support  

 Assistance for practical tasks or activities/lessons  or PE 

 Enhanced teacher planning so they have safe and  equitable curriculum access with their peers 

 Daily communication with home to enable continuity of approach 

 Intervention or Short term specialist support and training for mobility and independent living skills.   

Happy 

 Frequent, individual  support for mediation of the language environment, e.g.Sign/Gesture or use of Makaton, 
simplifying/repetition of instructions, checking understanding of instructions, understanding increasingly complex social 
concepts/language etc. .Predictable, structured routine.  This may include use of visual timetables and use of workstation.  

 Specific cues for changes/instructions, eg visual, use of name and notice in advance.  

 Daily  sessions of an evidence based intervention  to facilitate the development of  language and communication skills to support 
social interaction with peers and develop friendships.  

 Opportunities to work in small group situations, with specified support, to facilitate the development of social interaction with 
peers and develop friendships.  

 Specific cues for changes/instructions, eg visual, use of name and notice in advance.  

 regular prompting, additional visual input and support from an adult to support communication interaction with others 

 

P
age 69

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Sensory and Physical 

Sensory and Physical(S&P) : 

Typically these pupils have profound and 
complex needs which impact on all aspects 
of life and learning. They which require a 
high level of adult assistance to  access and 
take part in life and learning activities safely. 

They may use  an alternative approach for 
communication, e.g BSL  or recording. They 
are able to access the curriculum only with 
assistive devices and require substantial 
mediation and/or adaptation of materials 

They may use alterative means of recording, 
e.g Braille . 

 They may require up to 2:1 adult assistance  
to facilitate  care, e.g feeding, suctioning and 
safe manual handing/transfers between 
equipment. They may require high level of  
and support to manage their physical and/or 
medical and/or behavioural needs.  

These pupils have a permanent  hearing loss 
or   They may wear hearing aids, or are 
cochlear implants users or auditory 
brainstem implant.  .   

These pupils  may have severe vision 
impairment.  They are registered severely 
sight impaired.  They are able to access 
curriculum only with substantial adaptations 
of all learning materials.  They are able to 
access buildings and move around the 

BAND 6   

Pupils may: 

 Have severe or complex individual needs and requirements arising from their diagnosis of  sensory  impairment or physical disability 
which impact on all aspects of their daily life and learning, e.g. behaviour/medical needs. They are not able to take part in activities 
without a high level of individual assistance to manage  safe and equitable access. 

 Require a high level of individual equipment to develop or maintain mobility and independence  or to manage  individual health 
needs safely, e.g suctioning  or require use of hoisting as they are non weight bearing 

 Have sensory or mobility needs arising from balance and coordination difficulties which frequently impact on safe access to 
environment.  

 Gave primary care needs which require a high-level assistance  across all aspects of the learning day e.g s, oxygen 

 Use a range of individual equipment  across the day including standing frame, specialised seating system  ,powered wheelchair or be 
dependent on assistance for mobility 

 Use augmentative and alternative communication systems e.g. communication aid system, PECS, , BSL ,touch cuing, sign supported 
English, etc. as primary/only communication which requires adult facilitation or input. 

 Have significant difficulty  independently accessing and taking part in learning/curriculum  and  require a high level of assistance to 
make year on year progress and work towards ARE  

 Require a personalised and flexible timetable e,g, to manage fatigue or pain, medical needs require regular rest breaks/interventions 
which result in frequent missed learning and impacts on attendance.  

 Have severe range  of complex needs which impact on their social interactions and communication, e.g Be unable to interact freely 
with peers and this has a significant impact on development of friendships. 

 Be dependent on assistance for most personal care needs, eg toilet, dressing, eating and drinking 

 Have very limited function hearing for speech, despite aids and use signing as first language. 

Pupils may require: 

A very high adult to pupil ratio to facilitate 1:1 up to 2:1 (where there are additional medical needs) to  

 safely access the school day  

 specialist health care, eg tracheostomy, gastrostomy, pressure care, requiring multi-agency joint working  

 high tech communication aid to develop and support with complex communication  needs 

 support to develop positive SEMH/reduce anxieties/manage complex and challenging behaviours  

 access to a mainstream curriculum or specialist setting 

 individually designed curriculum in order to make expected progress, with specialist materials and equipment.  

 Ongoing multi-professional support and advice for planning, review hours or for a high level of family support and liaison. 

 Full time access to small classes with curriculum delivered though alternative means  
 

P
age 70

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

setting only with significant support.  

These pupils have limited ability to 
contribute to self-care and are therefore 
highly reliant on adult support for moving, 
positioning, personal care (including 
drinking, eating, hoisting etc).  They have a 
severe physical disability that creates 
substantial communication difficulties 
requiring aids such as 4Talk4 or other 
assistive curriculum devices.  They are non-
verbal although able to communicate using 
specialist communication aids e.g Tellus/ 
Dynavox.  

These pupils  have profound, long term 
progressive/regressive medical conditions.   
One or more of their conditions are not 
stable.  They require continuous monitoring 
and support throughout the day and this 
includes complex medical interventions.  
They are completely dependent on adults 
for all aspects of life and care.  These pupils 
have total and complex support for mobility, 
personal care, positioning, movement, 
hoisting and eating/drinking, 
communication, learning and recording.   

  

 

P
age 71

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Educational Needs Banding Levels for Gloucestershire Pupils 

Social Emotional and Mental Health Needs 

 

  

 
 
 
 

Specialist Commissioning Team 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                       01452 XXXXX 

XXXXXX@gloucestershire.gov.uk    
September 2020 

 

 

P
age 73

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/
mailto:XXXXXX@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Social, Emotional and Mental Health   

Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) : 
 
Typically pupils can progress in mainstream with timely and 
appropriate interventions.  
 
Specialised trauma informed approaches and 
understanding of ACEs will be required 
 
Pupils experience low level/low frequency difficulties with: 
 

 Following classroom routines 

 Complying with adult direction 

 Responding appropriately to social situations 

 Forming and sustaining relationships with peers. 
 

These may be linked to events in their life which have a 
temporary or irregular impact on the child. 
 
Pupils may: 

 Have immature social/emotional skills e.g. 
difficulties with turn-taking, reciprocal attention, 
sharing resources etc.  

 Be socially isolated e.g. tends to be alone and how 
low-level anxiety in social situations. 

 Have low self-esteem which can result in low level 
bullying, attention seeking or withdrawal.  

 Have difficult family experiences that are hard to 
leave outside the classroom.  

 Experience anxiety when encountering different 
people, places, or tasks. 

 
 
 
 

BAND 1 
Pupils may: 
 
Find it difficult to stay on task and frequently disengage  
 
Have a short attention span for subjects that do not interest them 
 
Be more distracted  than peers by sounds, smells, light etc. and this can periodically prevent them from learning  
 
Have some difficulties organising their thoughts and ideas to be able to recount clearly an event, or tell a story to a range of communication partners  
 
Be below chronological reading age 
 

Pupils will require: 
 
Learning: 
Teacher planned adjustments to the balance of the curriculum with regards to assessment, planning interventions and/or evaluating and reviewing progress (at least annually) to 
be delivered through quality first teaching 
 
Targeted support to develop attention and concentration skills, time of task and independent learning skills through occasional class based Key Adult support 
 
Programme of study appropriate to a child’s levels of attainments, rather than Key Stage, which is regularly overseen, monitored and evaluated by a qualified teacher/SENCO 
 
Teacher planned modification of curriculum in order to take account of evidence based structured programmes of learning to develop literacy and/or numeracy skills, delivered 
by a person trained in the programme delivery which are regularly monitored and evaluated 
 
Teacher planned modification of outcomes (e.g. alternative methods of response) including alternative recording strategies to access some areas of the curriculum (e.g. diagrams, 
mind maps, enhanced use of ICT with appropriate software) and/or frequent support for written tasks, an/or LSA. This may include modification of arrangements for examination 
 
Communication:  
Frequent, shared support for mediation of the language environment e.g. , simplifying/repetition of instructions, checking understanding of instructions, understanding, age and 
person specific interactions  
 
Safe and happy: 
 
Some daily support to regulate their behaviour and emotional well-being to facilitate curriculum access 

Support to interact with peers in unstructured times 

Focus on developing engagement and building relationships with staff and peers 

Rest breaks/movement breaks/interventions throughout the week to maximise emotional wellbeing 

Specific cues for changes/instructions e.g. visual, use of name and warning in advance 
 
Planned inclusion to access all curriculum areas 

A  risk assessment which covers the school day/week 

 
 

P
age 74

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Social, Emotional and Mental Health    
Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) : 

Typically pupils require an enhanced pupil/adult ratio so that 

they can receive specific support, supervision and 

interventions in order to make expected progress, and/or 

they need to work within a small group for a proportion of 

the day.   

They may have not additional learning needs or learning 

needs maybe impacting upon their behaviour and progress.  

Health professionals may be investigating the nature of  

SEMH needs  

 

BAND 2 

Pupils may: 

Be withdrawn, timid and in need of nurture across the curriculum 

Struggle with appropriate learning behaviour e.g. sustaining attention and concentration, motivation to engage with work-related tasks 

Sometimes approach situations in ways which cause a barrier to learning such as disengaging, destroying own/others work, use work avoidance strategies, often with limited 

concentration  

Struggle to listen and respond without frequent support and prompting  

Have difficulty at times of transition or when unexpected change to routine 

Have inconsistency and challenges in their home life which impact on their emotional well-being and behaviour in school 

Be keen to have friends but struggle making and maintaining friendships 

Have less awareness of danger/risks than peers and put themselves or others at risk sometimes when moving around the environment 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision detailed in Band 1: 

Learning: 

Significant teacher planned adjustments to the balance of the curriculum with regards to assessment, planning interventions and/or evaluating and reviewing progress (at least 
annually) to be delivered through quality first teaching 
 
Specifically targeted support to develop attention and concentration skills, time of task and independent learning skills through small group intervention outside of class based 
Key Adult support 
 
Evidence informed teaching approaches which place emphasis on direct teaching, finely graded tasks, structured multi-sensory techniques, practical tasks, which provide 
opportunities for frequent repetition and reinforcement/opportunities for over-learning and are regularly monitored and reviewed to ensure appropriate pupil progress.  
Programme of study appropriate to a child’s levels of attainments, rather than Key Stage, which is regularly overseen, monitored and evaluated by a qualified teacher/SENCO 
 
Pre/post tutoring, by a teacher or appropriately trained LSA, for specific areas of learning which is regularly monitored and reviewed to ensure appropriate pupil progress   
 
Specific teacher planned modification of curriculum in order to take account of evidence based structured programmes of learning to develop literacy and/or numeracy skills, 
delivered by a person trained in the programme delivery which are regularly monitored and evaluated 
 
Specific teacher planned modification of outcomes (e.g. alternative methods of response) including alternative recording strategies to access the majority of the curriculum (e.g. 
diagrams, mind maps, enhanced use of ICT with appropriate software) and/or frequent support for written tasks, an/or LSA. This may include modification of arrangements for 
examination 
 
Communication: 

Frequent, shared support for mediation of the language environment e.g. , simplifying/repetition of instructions, checking understanding of instructions, understanding 

increasingly complex social concepts/language and situations  

 
Safe and happy: 
Enhanced teacher planning for key stage transfers and enhanced support plans for year on year moves 
 
Predictable, structured routine. This may include use of visual timetables and use of workstation 
 
Opportunities to work in small group situations, with specified support to facilitate the development of social interaction with peers and develop friendships  

 
Designated time to repair damaged relationships with other pupils and teachers by the end of the day, following negative behaviours 

Strategies to increase self esteem, confidence and greater resilience when faced with a perceived challenge. This can be explored through language, emotion coaching 
and understanding of a range of feelings 

P
age 75

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Social, Emotional and Mental Health    

Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) :  

Typically pupils require an enhanced pupil/adult ratio so that they 

can receive specific support, supervision and interventions in 

order to make expected progress, and/or they need to work 

within a small group for a proportion of the day.   

They may have additional learning needs or learning needs may 

be impacting upon their behaviour and progress  

 

BAND 3 

Pupils may: 

Have difficulty following classroom routines and expectations that impact on their and others’ learning 

Have some difficulty using language to organise their thoughts and ideas to be able to recount clearly an event or tell a story to a range of communication partners 

Find changes to their routine difficult and may need time to calm down 

Have identified attachment or SEMH needs 

Struggle with self-regulating emotions resulting in frequent behaviour which affects relationships and learning (eg angry, emotional outbursts, sexualised language, anxiety, mood 

swings and unpredictable behaviour)  

Behave in a way that disrupts the learning of others  

Find it difficult to understand language in order to reason e.g. make inferences, predict outcomes or draw conclusions  

Have significant self-esteem issues that affect relationships and behaviour patterns (‘acting in’ or ‘acting out’) 

Struggle socialising with peers and adults e.g. lack of empathy, victim or perpetrator of bullying 

Often show low mood or refuse to communicate for periods of time 

Have difficult relationships with adults  

Have emotional well-being needs that take time and impact on learning opportunities on a daily basis 

Be triggered by particular activities or people as a result of their lived experience causing extremes of emotion 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision detailed in Bands  1 and 2: 
 
Learning: 
Individual teacher planning and higher levels of adult support to access the learning and social curriculum for at least 50% of the week  
 
Support throughout the day to regulate their behaviour to facilitate curriculum access, increase time on task and reduce distractibility  
 
Structured support and appropriately differentiated tasks to address an additional learning need e.g.  specific or general learning difficulties, or  speech, language and 
communication need.  
 
Structured teaching approach such as an individual workstation/ calm space to support sustained focus and concentration 

 
Safe and happy: 
Time to discuss feelings and experiences before learning can start 
 
A key worker  to work daily with the pupil to plan and review targets, build on successes and create meaningful links with home 
 
Carefully planned inclusion to access all curriculum areas 

A detailed risk assessment which covers the school day/week 

Access to individual therapeutic work with a qualified therapist or school counsellor 

P
age 76

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

 

Social, Emotional and Mental Health   

Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) : 

Typically pupils require an enhanced pupil/adult ratio so 

that they can receive specific support, supervision and 

interventions in order to make expected progress, and/or 

they need to work within a small group for a proportion of 

the day.   

They are likely to have experienced multiple fixed term 

exclusions and significant planning to manage their access 

to learning.  

They may have been educated off site to access individual 

interventions.  

 

BAND 4  

Pupils may: 

Frequently find it difficult to identify and regulate their emotions (e.g. anxiety, frustration, upset) and this impacts on their and others learning 

Often challenge rules and will show persistent resistance to adult intervention to help them manage their behaviour 

Use language for a range of functions, but have some difficulty using language to communicate effectively their message  

Have difficulty in moderating their use of language despite daily intervention and support in order to communicate basic needs 

Have significant difficulties listening and/or responding even with high levels of support  

Find changes to their routine and meeting new people very difficult and these impacts significantly on ability to access learning 

Have difficulty understanding language in order to reason e.g. make inferences, predict outcomes or draw conclusions 

Have additional complex mental health needs which impact on their learning or social interaction and which require additional staff interventions 

Have ongoing involvement and support from outside agencies to support the family (eg CIN Plan, CP Plan, Family Support Worker etc) 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision detailed in Bands  1, 2 and 3: 
 
Learning: 
 
Individual teacher planning and some adult support to access the learning and social curriculum for at least 75% of the week 
 
Appropriate curriculum differentiation and structured support, commensurate with cognitive skills, to provide prompting to start and maintain on task behaviour for most of 
the school day  
 
Structure and consistency in delivery and support 
 
Communication: 
 
Frequent, shared support and reviews for mediation of the language environment e.g. , simplifying/repetition of instructions, checking understanding of instructions, 
understanding increasingly complex social concepts/language and situations/Visual aids to support communication and routine 
 
High levels of emotional literacy-based support through a trained professional or whole school approach 
 
Safe and happy: 
 
Frequent daily support to regulate their behaviour to facilitate curriculum access and regular intervention from Senior Leadership or designated pastoral support team in 
order to manage and reduce the frequency of serious incidents 
 
Daily specific additional supervision in order to maintain safety during social times 
 
Regular specialist support to address their social and emotional needs and anxieties 
 
Access to additional therapy e.g. CAMHS/Speech & Language and other therapy provision as determined by health and/ or Social Care 
 
Access to a safe space if they show anxiety, distress or challenging behaviour  
 
Access to an individualised workstation area with appropriate resources such as fiddle objects, ear defenders etc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 77

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Social, Emotional and Mental Health   

Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) : 

Typically pupils have complex needs which require specific 

support on a daily basis from a range of adults in order to 

make expected progress.  

They are likely to have experienced multiple fixed term 

exclusions and permanent exclusion with significant 

planning to manage their access to learning.  

They may have been educated off site to access individual 

behaviour interventions.  

They may be frequently unable to interact with other pupils 

and staff. 

 

 

BAND 5 

Pupils may: 

Regularly and sometimes frequently approach situations in ways which cause a significant barrier to learning e.g. disengaging, destroying own/others work, use work 

avoidance strategies, often with limited concentration 

Have needs associated with attachment and trauma 

Use physical aggression towards others 

Frequently use unacceptable language despite daily intervention and support in order to communicate basic needs 

Have intense emotional outbursts, (eg uninhibited unpredictable outbursts, sexualised behaviour and language, high levels of anxiety, hyper-vigilance, mood swings, and 

difficulties with social relationships) 

Engage in self-harm and activities which put themselves in dangerous situations that include, extremist behaviours and gang related culture 

Present increasing concerns around mental health e.g. self–harm, irrational fears, risk-taking and substance misuse 

Have difficulty initiating and maintaining conversations 

Be aware that their behaviour has an impact but are unable to show empathy or remorse 

Have difficulty  organising self and belongings that impact on ability to participate in learning independently 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision detailed in Bands  1, 2, 3 and 4: 
 
Learning: 

An individually designed curriculum in order to make expect progress 

Ongoing multi-professional support and advice for planning, reviews and to evaluate progress, in relation to the education setting and/or family support 

Daily small teaching groups to deliver an individualised curriculum to address additional learning needs, reduce distractibility and facilitate completion of tasks in order to 
make expected progress 
 
Constant support to regulate their behaviour to facilitate curriculum access 

Communication: 

The speech and language therapist will provide up to 5 therapy sessions, followed by a period of consolidation for the family and school to continue with the recommendations 

Safe and happy: 

Planning to support part time out of school hours to support engagement and receive person centred support 

Daily intervention and/or advice for staff from appropriately trained professionals 

Support to change habitual behaviours that inhibit learning and progression 

Specific management plan and structured intervention to manage inappropriate behaviour (including sexualised behaviour, extremist behaviours and gang related culture) 

Learning environment where staff  are trained in an evidenced based programme of de-escalation of violent and aggressive behaviours to manage, reduce, and prevent 
behaviours from occurring 
 
 

P
age 78

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Social, Emotional and Mental Health   

Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH): 

Typically pupils have complex needs which require specific 

1:1 adult interventions for the vast majority of the time to 

support social and emotional needs 

Pupils exhibit severe and challenging behaviour resulting in 

a number of exclusions 

They will need constant support to interact appropriately 

with other pupils and staff 

 

 

BAND 6 

Pupils may: 

Persistently  disrupt teaching groups to the extent where they must follow highly structured, personalised learning programmes 

Display prolonged, targeted and unpredictable behaviour and emotional outbursts  

Have  profound attachment and trauma issues  

Frequently use unacceptable language despite daily intervention and support in order to communicate basic needs 

Significantly and repeatedly self-harm such that intervention is frequently required 

Have a profile of sexualised behaviour that requires a risk assessment indicating constant supervision 

Present as a high risk of extremist or radicalised involvement that require on going supervision 

Have additional, complex (recognised) mental health or learning needs which require daily intervention 

Be unable to manage and label their own emotions and behaviour and/or reflect on consequences for others 

Be subject to a current  CP Plan or have regular involvement with Social Care or is a registered Young Carer 

Have social communication difficulties which impact on all areas of learning and social activity  

Have difficulty processing taking ownership of behaviour and lack the capacity to be reflective 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision detailed in Bands  1, 2, 3 and 4: 
 

Learning: 

A totally individually designed curriculum in order to make expected progress 

A planned programme of personal and social development and behaviour management, requiring reduced group size and specialist adult contact, which 
provides a high predictable routine and structured support for time outside the classroom  
 
Consistency of expectation from all adults involved in the pupil’s education 
 
Communication: 
 
Safe and happy: 

Planning and provision for out of school hours or for a high level of family support and liaison 
 
Support, throughout the school day, which requires frequent intervention from Senior Leadership several times a day order to manage and reduce the 
frequency of serious incidents  
 
Daily opportunities to experience small group work in areas such as managing conflict, making and keeping friends, awareness of own feelings and those of 
others, accepting consequences of his/her behaviour 
 
Additional external specialist support for social, emotional and behavioural difficulties they are experiences e.g. CAMHS/other therapy provision as 
determined by health and/or social care 
 

P
age 79

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Educational Needs                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Banding Descriptors for Gloucestershire Pupils 

Communication and Interaction 
 

 

Please be aware that CYP with a diagnosis of a social communication or autistic spectrum condition may not present consistently across a day or period 
of time, and therefore may not neatly fit the criteria below.  CYP may present with behaviours that fit Band 1 but on another day present with Band 3 
behaviours.  It may be changeable over time and there may be significant variation in presentation. 

Please be aware that many strategies/interventions will be applicable across all bands to a greater or lesser extent.  

It should be remembered that children experiencing C&I difficulties will experience varying levels of anxiety during the day – usually heightened in 
relation to their peers. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

 

 

 

 

 

Specialist Commissioning Team 

P
age 81

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                       01452 XXXXX 

bandingworkstream@gloucestershire.gov.uk    

February 2021 

 

P
age 82

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/
mailto:bandingworkstream@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

 

Communication and Interaction  

Communication and 
Interaction (C&I) : 

These pupils can progress 
in mainstream with timely 
and appropriate 
interventions. 

These pupils experience 
low level/low frequency 
difficulties with:  

 Following classroom 
routines. 

 Complying with 
adult directions. 

 Responding 
appropriately to 
social situations. 

 Forming and 
sustaining 
relationships with 
peers. 

These pupils have identified 
needs and are going 
through assessment or 
identified as having ASD or 
SLCN. 

BAND 1 
Pupils may: 

 

Experience raised anxiety.  This may be exacerbated at the start of the day, at transition points, when there are unexpected changes to 
routines or new events/environments. 

Be able to follow most conversations/instructions in context  

Have some difficulty using/understanding non-verbal communication 

Be mostly confident with occasional difficulty integrating or fulfilling social activity  

Have mild occasional upset, frustration, anger, distress, embarrassment, concern or withdrawal 

Have some difficulty developing/maintaining friendships 

Have difficulties initiating/maintaining reciprocal conversations 

Listen and respond in partner and/or group situations with occasional prompting, additional visual input and support 

Relate well to adults and peers and engage in subject appropriate conversations with some support 

Manage changes in routine provided adequate notice and preparations are given 

Understand when reduced language is used, additional time is given and/or instructions are repeated 

Find particular environments and sensory stimulation difficult to manage and this impacts on ability to listen and respond 

Be gaining the ability to work independently although require prompts, support, etc. at times of transition, change to routine etc 

May interpret language literally. 

Pupils may  require: 

Learning: 

Motivating activities that take account of their interests to engage them.   

Additional explanation of the purpose of the task to encourage engagement. 

Teacher planned adjustments to the balance of the curriculum to allow advice from a suitably qualified professional for school staff with 
regards to assessment, planning interventions and/or evaluating and reviewing progress (at least annually) 

P
age 83

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Evidence informed teaching approaches which place emphasis on direct teaching, finely graded tasks, structured multi-sensory techniques, 
practical tasks, which provide opportunities for frequent repetition and reinforcement/opportunities for over-learning and are regularly 
monitored and reviewed to ensure appropriate pupil progress 

Programme of study appropriate to a child’s levels of attainments, rather than Key Stage, which is regularly overseen, monitored and 
evaluated by a qualified teacher/SENCO 

Pre/post tutoring, by a teacher or appropriately trained LSA, for specific areas of learning which is regularly monitored and reviewed to 
ensure appropriate pupil progress 

Specific teacher planned modification of curriculum in order to take account of evidence based structured programmes of learning to 
develop literacy and/or numeracy skills, delivered by a person trained in the programme delivery which are regularly monitored and 
evaluated 

Specific teacher planned modification of outcomes (e.g. alternative methods of response) including alternative recording strategies to 
access the majority of the curriculum (e.g. diagrams, mind maps, enhanced use of ICT with appropriate software) and/or frequent support 
for written tasks, an/or LSA. This may include modification of arrangements for examinations 

Teaching approaches which place emphasis on modelling and demonstrating tasks  

Structured tasks with a clearly defined beginning and end.  Use of timer to support this may be needed. 

 

Communication: 

Use of a child’s name to tune in/ensure  their attention is gained before beginning any information/instruction.   

Language backed with visuals, modelling, demonstration, concrete objects of reference. 

Simplified  language, explanation of idiomatic or metaphorical language, consistent use of language by adults, spoken instructions backed 
up with written instructions/notes.  Avoidance of sarcasm.  Awareness child may understand language literally. 

Focused speech, language and communication advice arising from appropriate, formative assessments. This would form the Speech and 
Language Therapy episode of care. (The Speech and Language Therapy service uses an ‘episode of care’ model where packages of work are 
offered to address specific communication targets) 

Teaching staff to consider accessing training packages available from Speech and Language Therapy service to support speech language 
needs 

Available adult to support the generalisation of new skills to the child’s everyday environment 

P
age 84

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

Safe: 

Warning in advance to changes in routine and at transition points during the day. 

Complete a sensory audit, with the child, where possible. 

 

 

Happy:  

Opportunities to work in small group situations, with specified support to facilitate the development of social interaction with peers and 
develop friendships.  

Predictable, structured routine. This may include use of visual timetables and use of workstation 

Utmost importance placed on staff getting to know the child well over time, forming an attuned relationship and as a result understanding 
and meeting their needs.   

 

P
age 85

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Communication and Interaction 

Communication and Interaction 
(C&I) : 

Typically pupils require an 
enhanced pupil/adult ratio so 
that they can receive specific 
support, supervision and 
interventions in order to make 
expected progress, and/or they 
need to work within a small 
group for a proportion of the 
day. 

Exhibit some rigid behaviours 
and/or intense ‘special interests’ 
and talk about them at length. 
They may have difficulties with 
social communication including 
developing relationships with 
others. 

Sharing and turn taking may be 
problematic. 

May have difficulties with 
expressive/receptive language.   

May have features of autism/ a 
diagnosis of ASD and may be 
masking their difficulties  

BAND 2 
Pupils may: 
 

Experience raised anxiety.  This may be exacerbated at the start of the day, at transition points, when there are unexpected 
changes to routines or new events/environments. 

Have difficulties in areas of comprehension (eg inference and deduction),  
 
Have difficulties asking and answering open questions, and difficulties understanding abstract higher level language 
 
Have some difficulties in understanding and conveying more abstract concepts. 
 
Find social interaction and social communication difficult 
 
Recognising and understanding their own emotions and those of others difficult 
 
Have mild to moderate expressive and receptive language difficulties which prevent effective age–appropriate communication 
 
Have difficulties regulating emotions (e.g. anxiety, frustrations, upset) which impact on their and others’ learning and 
wellbeing 
 
Have difficulty following adult led tasks and instructions. 
 
Use language for a range of functions but are sometimes not understood clearly by others this may cause frustration/anxiety. 
 
Relate well towards adults and peers but will often use phrases/behaviours which can be out of context; may present as 
aloof/abrupt or misread social situation. 
 
Have difficulty communicating with others, especially when anxious or unsettled. 
 
Make progress with ability to work independently but are not yet able to organise work and self without regular prompts, 
support etc. throughout the day 
 

 

P
age 86

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Pupils may require: 
 
In addition to, or in place of, the provision in Band 1: 
Learn: 
Advice from an appropriately qualified professional for setting staff on how to enable full access to curriculum and evaluate 
progress (at least 2 x per year) 

Differentiation according to the needs of the child. 
 

Communication: 

As Level 1 and additionally: 

Interventions such as Social stories, comic strip conversations to support child to understand situations and expectations, 
manage new experiences/environments, understand the impact of their words and actions on others etc. 

Social skills interventions. 

Specific support strategies and interventions, as advised by a speech and language therapist,  delivered by trained staff, in 
order that they engage with the curriculum, develop social competence and emotional well-being  and  make expected 
progress 
The Speech and Language Therapist may visit up to 2 times per episode of care to model, demonstrate, discuss targets, 
recommend resources and monitor 
 
Teaching staff to consider accessing training packages available from Speech and Language Therapy service to support speech 
language needs 
 
Available adult to support the generalisation of new communication skills to the child’s everyday environment 
 
 
 
Happy 
Specific planned support to develop social understanding and/or to address sensory needs 
 
Close liaison with parent/carer. 

P
age 87

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Utmost importance placed on staff getting to know the child well over time, forming an attuned relationship and as a result 
understanding and meeting their needs.   

A range of evidence based strategies and interventions to meet the needs of a child with C&I additional needs. 

Staff who have received AET Level 1 Training. 

 
  

P
age 88

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Communication and Interaction 

Communication and Interaction 
(C&I) : 

Typically pupils require an enhanced 
pupil/adult ratio so that they can 
receive specific support, supervision 
and interventions in order to make 
expected progress and/or they need 
to work within a small group for a 
proportion of the day. 

They may need frequent support 
because of their  

Exhibit some rigid behaviours 
and/or intense “special interests” 
and have difficulties with social 
communication including 
developing relationships with others 
and in day to day interactions. 

 

 

BAND 3 

Pupils may: 

Experience raised anxiety.  This may be exacerbated at the start of the day, at transition points, when there are unexpected changes to 
routines or new events/environments. 

Have difficulty following and using basic concepts relating to time, size, space etc 

Have moderate speech sound difficulties 

Have moderate language difficulties 

Have persistent immaturities with speech and language 

Have an uneven profile of abilities and understanding 

Struggle to listen and respond without frequent and consistent support and prompting 

Be unable to understand the routines and expectations in environments without regular preparation and explanation 

Have difficulties using language for the full range of functions, and have difficulty using language to communicate their message  
effectively 

Use visuals/signing etc. to support their communication and understanding in all lessons  

Have difficulties at times of transition or when there are changes to routine 

Have difficulties identifying and regulating emotions (e.g. anxiety, frustration, upset) which impact on their and others’ learning 

Have difficulties following classroom routines and expectations this will impact on their and others learning 

Have anxiety and/or social communication difficulties which impact on some social interaction and development of relationships 

Have difficulty sequencing their ideas and thoughts to be able to recount clearly an event or tell a story to a range of communication 
partners 

Have limited initiation of social interaction and can take part in some imaginative play if taught/supported, but cannot develop this 
independently 

Display restricted or repetitive patterns of behaviours or interest 

Have communication difficulties (despite adequate vocabulary and language structures) which inhibit learning. Expressive language 
abilities are impaired to a degree that prevents effective age appropriate communication 

P
age 89

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Have difficulties with social interaction and/or restricted/ inflexible thinking leading to anxiety  which the pupil finds difficult to cope 
with and which could occasionally lead to behaviour that challenges the norm 

Follow appropriate, structured and predictable classroom conventions 

Pupils may require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision in Bands 1 and 2: 

Learn: 

Differentiated and tailored teaching strategies where teaching and instruction are explicit and clear 

Learning tasks to be differentiated to account for individual strengths and weaknesses 

Additional support for planning and structuring written/ verbal tasks to include clear, explicit targets for completion of tasks (eg timers, 
targets for quantity) 

Regular advice from an appropriately qualified professional for setting staff on how to enable full access to the curriculum and evaluate 
progress 

Regular allocated time from adults  to implement specific support strategies and interventions recommended by professionals so that 
they can make expected progress 

Communication: 

Concrete language with an avoidance of figurative speech, idioms, sarcasm etc including modification of language context for all subjects 

Visual supports to aid language understanding (e.g. pictures, symbols, objects of reference, gestures, and checklists) help access to the 
curriculum 

A modified curriculum to meet need.   

Alternative and augmented communication methods, supported by an appropriately experienced/ trained adult, in order to allow them 
access to curriculum, commensurate with their cognitive skills e.g. non verbal skills may be in line with national expectations 

The Speech and Language Therapist may visit up to 4 times per episode of care to model, demonstrate, discuss targets, recommend 
resources and monitor 

Happy 

 

P
age 90

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

 

 

Close liaison with parent/carer. 

Utmost importance placed on staff getting to know the child well over time, forming an attuned relationship and as a result 
understanding and meeting their needs.   

A range of evidence based strategies and interventions to meet the needs of a child with C&I additional needs. 

Staff who have received AET Level 1 Training. 

Support/interventions to settle and reassure a child at the beginning of the day and during the day when necessary. 

Staff to have an understanding of why a child may be exhibiting certain behaviours including refusal to engage, withdrawal, meltdowns 
and shutdowns; effective strategies to support and diffuse including reflective work post incident. 

1:1 work with an adult to explore calming and relaxation strategies. 

Consistent, structures and predictable classroom routines with  advanced  preparation for changes and transitions 

Attention to the pupil’s areas of special interest or skills in order to promote learning 

Specific planned support to develop social understanding and/or to address sensory needs 

P
age 91

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Communication and Interaction 

Communication and Interaction (C&I) : 

Typically pupils require an enhanced 
pupil/adult ratio so that they can 
receive specific support, supervision 
and interventions in order to make 
expected progress and/or they need to 
work within a small group for a 
proportion of the day. 

They may make frequent demands for 
support because of their 
learning/behavioural difficulties and/or 
because of their dependency on 
students for their self help/care needs.  

Exhibit some rigid behaviours and/or 
intense “special interests” and have 
difficulties with social communication 
including developing relationships with 
others.  

The additional needs should be 
considered long term. 

 

BAND 4 

Pupils may: 
Have difficulties identifying and regulating emotions (e.g. anxiety, frustration, upset) this will impact on his/her and 
others’ learning and wellbeing 

Display  frequent physical and/or verbal aggression towards others which requires support from SLT or designated 
pastoral support team 

Find changes to routine and meeting new people very stressful, which impacts significantly on ability it access 
learning 

Have a lack of awareness of danger including caution around strangers and eating non-edible items 

Not engage with peers and have little interest in friendships 

Be vulnerable to bullying/exploitation due to a lack of social awareness, naivety and/or a desire to be independent 

Have significant difficulty understanding language in order to reason e.g. make inferences, predict outcomes or 
draw conclusions 

Be unable to communicate consistently for a range of communicative functions, e.g. requesting, commenting, 
questioning, refusing and greeting 

Have significant difficulties listening and/or responding even with high levels of support. 

Understand when language is simplified and pictures, real objects etc. used alongside verbal instructions 

Use augmentative and alternative communication system, e.g. communication booklet, PECS, Makaton,  objects of 
reference, visuals etc 

Unable to sequence their ideas and thoughts to be able to recount clearly an event or tell a story to a range of 
communication partners 

Make small steps of progress with limited ability to work independently as difficulties are long term 

Learn self-care  skills when they are broken down into small steps and/or supervised by an adult  

Display restricted or repetitive patterns of behaviour or interest and some repetitive motor mannerisms used to 
self regulate or self occupy 

P
age 92

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Experience severe difficulties with communication leading to significant anxiety or heightened arousal, including 
behaviours that challenge the norm 

Experience severe difficulties with social interaction  leading to heightened anxiety that can endure for a prolonged 
period even with support/appropriate intervention  from SLT or designated pastoral support team 

Experience severe difficulties with sensory processing which leads to heightened anxiety levels and some behaviour 
which challenge the norm and/or impact on learning that require support from SLT or designated pastoral support 
team 

 
Have difficulties understanding concepts relating to position, time, space, etc 

Pupils will require: 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision in Bands 1, 2 and 3: 

Learn: 

Explicit didactic teaching strategies 

Learning tasks to be differentiated to account for individual strengths and weaknesses, including personalised 
rewards, reinforcement or activities that build upon personal interests to help them engage 

Individual teacher planning and some adult support to access the learning and social curriculum for at least 75% of 
the week 

Frequent specific interventions on a daily basis from adults in order to make expected progress 

Appropriately trained adult help to assist cognitive development and develop attentions skills and/or distract from 
repetitive activity  

Termly advice from an appropriately qualified professional for setting staff on how to enable full access to the 
curriculum and evaluate progress 

Communication: 

Concrete language with an avoidance of figurative speech, idioms, sarcasm etc including modification of language 
context for all subjects  

P
age 93

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

Frequent support with mediated communication strategies to reduce anxiety and facilitate curriculum access in 
order to make expected progress 

Visual supports to aid language understanding (e.g. pictures, symbols, objects of reference, gestures, and 
checklists) help access to the curriculum 

The Speech and Language Therapist may visit up to 6 times per episode of care to model, demonstrate, discuss 
targets, recommend resources and monitor. 

Safe: 

Specific additional supervision by a trained adult  in order to maintain safety within the school grounds and social 
times 

A risk assessment to be reviewed and updated regularly 

Happy: 

Consistent, structures and predictable classroom routines with  advance preparation for changes and transitions 

Attention to the pupil’s areas of special interest or skills in order to promote learning 

Carefully planned inclusion opportunities, supported in part by additional adult support 

Access to a suitable social skills programme with a range of peers 

The use of an evidence based  social skills intervention for children with needs relating to social communication and 
interactions that focuses on building friendships, understanding social inference, conversational skills, body 
language, assertiveness and protective behaviours  

Specific planned support to develop social understanding and skills particularly at times of major life changes e.g. 
parental separation or KS 2/3 transfer 

P
age 94

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Communication and Interaction 

Communication and Interaction (C&I) : 

Typically these pupils have complex needs 
which require specific 1:1 adult 
interventions for the vast majority of the 
time to facilitate alternative communication 
and support physical and/or medical and/or 
behavioural needs.  

BAND 5 

Pupils may/will: 
Use augmentative and alternative communication system, e.g. communication booklet, PECS, Makaton, BSL, touch cuing, sign 
supported English, objects of reference, visuals etc. as  primary/only communication 

Be unable to understand and carry out simple instructions independently or in line with age, despite repetition, clarification and 
augmented communication systems 

Use specialist communication equipment/aids/augmentative/alternative communication which requires adult facilitation 

Be unable to understanding language in order to reason e.g. make inferences, predict outcomes or draw conclusions 

Be entirely reliant upon an adult for a significant part of their care needs e.g. changing, feeding, dressing and/or medical 
intervention 

Require additional therapies e.g. access to a sensory room, physiotherapy and hydrotherapy 

Have some communication skills with the use of aids to the point of expressing some likes and dislikes and possibly some self-
initiated wishes 

Have conditions that overlap and interlock creating a complex profile e.g. mental health, behavioural, physical, medical, sensory 
communication and cognitive 

Have inconsistent attainment, presenting atypical or uneven profiles. May work at any level including the National Curriculum 
and P scale 

Be self-absorbed and difficult to engage 

Have difficulty with mobility, communication, perceptions and acquisition of self-help skills 

Be unlikely to be independent in everyday self-care 

Be unlikely to be independent outside familiar settings 

May be unable to eat and drink safely without a high level of adult support, e.g. requires a modified diet, not orally fed, not able 
to eat/drink independently 

Attempt to approach others (only to meet their own needs) paying little or no attention to their response 

Pupils will require: 

P
age 95

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

In addition to, or in place of, the provision in Bands 1, 2, 3 and 4: 

Learn: 

Access to ICT and other curricular aids to facilitate learning and maintain progress 

Specifically planned access to targeted mainstream curriculum areas  

Staff to ensure that their on-going assessments are appropriately differentiated to ensure an accurate picture of child/young 
person progress & attainment 

Communication: 

Access to a Total Communication environment where there is a whole group approach to supporting language development, 
and where signs, visual supports and gestures are used extensively 

Constant support with mediated communication strategies to reduce anxiety and facilitate curriculum access in order to make 
expected progress 

Staff to use appropriate communication approaches to encourage making independent choices and initiating communication 

Access to a Total Communication environment where there is a whole group approach to supporting language development, 
and where signs, visual supports and gestures are used extensively 

Engagement to be supported by visuals including timers and first/then boards and language. 

Focused speech, language and communication advice arising from appropriate, formative assessments. This would form the 
Speech and Language Therapy episode of care. 

The Speech and Language Therapy service uses an ‘episode of care’ model where packages of work are offered to address 
specific communication targets 

The Speech and Language Therapist may visit up to 6 times per episode of care to model, demonstrate, discuss targets, 
recommend resources and monitor 

Teaching staff to consider accessing training packages available from Speech and Language Therapy service to support speech 
language needs 

Setting may benefit from training in specialist areas from a Speech and Language therapist. This may include training in 
adapting the school environment, particularly if the child attends a mainstream setting 

Available adult to support the generalisation of new skills to the child’s everyday environment 

P
age 96

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Support and training with AAC and accessing appropriate methods of communication 

Visual supports to aid language understanding (e.g. pictures, symbols, objects of reference, gestures, and checklists) help access 
to the curriculum 

Safe: 

Ongoing multi-professional support and advice for planning, reviews and to evaluate progress and in relation to the education 
setting and/or family support 

Additional adult support on a daily basis to support safety where they have put themselves and/or peers and/or staff at risk of 
physical harm and may require physical intervention 

Access to significant individually tailored specialist equipment (e.g. seating) and/or resources including technical aids to allow 
curriculum access, care and support 

Assessment by a specialist speech and language therapist in dysphagia (feeding), with recommendations for safe 
eating/drinking provided and demonstrations offered if required. Recommendations to be updated when any changes are 
noted by staff in eating and drinking patterns or any signs of aspiration noted. 

A high level of adult support at snack/lunch times to ensure eating/drinking is done safely. 

All staff involved in eating/drinking to access eating and drinking awareness training from SLT service, to be carried out at a 
minimum every 2 years. 

 
Happy: 

A very high level of adult support in order to access the curriculum and meet emotional, social and personal need 

A managed environment with highly predictable routines in small groups with specific individual activities or a personalised 
learning environment 

Access to time out areas, appropriate sensory areas and/or additional therapies 

P
age 97

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Communication and Interaction 

Communication and Interaction (C&I) : 

Typically these pupils have complex needs 
which require specific 1:1 adult 
interventions for the vast majority of the 
time to facilitate alternative communication 
and support sensory processing and 
communication needs. 

 

BAND 6 

Pupils may/will: 

Be unable to understand the routines and expectations within their environment without daily preparation and explanation, 
including use of pictures, symbols, objects, signs and social stories 

Not understand simple instructions despite repetition, clarification and augmented communication 

Be unable to understand language in order to reason e.g. make inferences, predict outcomes or draw conclusions 

Have conditions that overlap and interlock creating a complex profile, e.g. mental health, behavioural, physical, medical, sensory, 
communication and cognitive 

Have inconsistent attainment, presenting atypical or uneven profiles. May work at any level including the National Curriculum 
and P scales 

Require high levels of personal care (feeding, dressing) and medical interventions 

Often require more than one to one supervision to maintain safety and engage in learning  

Be reliant on limited physical responses to express pre-intentional communication and/or requires a communication aid to 
express some likes and dislikes 

Have significantly limited functional language and communication across all settings 

Be unable to use language for any more than one function 

Have repetitive verbal and physical behaviours that are frequent and preclude most engagement in learning. These can lead to 
severe anxiety, aggression or withdrawal  

Have severe and persistent frustration with communication  which can cause extreme levels of acute anxiety experienced on a 
regular basis and across different settings. This will lead to extreme behaviours that will challenge the norm 

Have severe and persistent difficulties with social interaction, unpredictable, ongoing, extended periods of anxiety that cannot be 
reduced even with support and appropriate interventions 

Have significant difficulties with sensory processing and sensory modulations which lead to heightened anxiety levels. 
Passive/unsafe behaviours that challenge the norm and aversely affect the ability to engage with the world 

Show signs of distress over small changes in the environment and are reliant on routine and the expected. Significant and 
persistent adherence to personal, specific or complex routines across all settings  

Be highly dependent upon personal, routines and rituals leading to intense inappropriate reactions at times 

P
age 98

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Have multiple difficulties i.e. ADHD, uncontrolled epilepsy, mental health issues, selective mutism, dyspraxia, etc., and are likely 
to have additional formal diagnoses that require an individual plan and support for learning 

Pupils will require: 

Learning: 

A totally individually designed curriculum in order to make expected progress 

Frequent and ongoing multi-professional support and advice for panning, review and to evaluate progress 

Teaching by teachers experienced in teaching pupils with high level ASD in small groups throughout the day 

Communication: 

Access to a Total Communication environment where there is a whole group approach to supporting language development, and 
where signs, visual supports and gestures are used extensively 

Engagement to be supported by visuals including timers and first/then boards and language 

Speech and Language Therapist to provide outcomes/targets or updated advice to support EHCP annual review 

Provision of a focused speech, language and communication advice arising from appropriate, formative assessments. This would 
form the Speech and Language Therapy episode of care 

The Speech and Language Therapy service uses an ‘episode of care’ model where packages of work are offered to address 
specific communication targets 

The Speech and Language Therapist may visit up to 6 times per episode of care to model, demonstrate, discuss targets, 
recommend resources and monitor. This would relate to a specific identified need 

Teaching staff to consider accessing training packages available from Speech and Language Therapy service to support speech 
language need 

Setting may benefit from training in specialist areas from a Speech and Language therapist. This may include training in adapting 
the school environment, particularly if the child attends a mainstream setting 

Available adult to support the generalisation of new skills to the child’s everyday environment 

Support and training with AAC and accessing appropriate methods of communication 

P
age 99

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Visual supports to aid language understanding (e.g. pictures, symbols, objects of reference, gestures, and checklists) help access 
to the curriculum 

Safe: 

Planning and provision for out of school hours  for a high level of family support and liaison 

Constant trained adult support in order to access the curriculum and meet emotional, social and personal needs, Staff will need 
to be able to use appropriate communication approaches to encourage making independent choices and initiating 
communication 

Happy: 

Personalised and consistent strategies to be successful in all transitions 

Trained staff to provide structured help to raise confidence and self esteem, increase concentration and independence, 
communicate more effectively and understand social behavioural norms (may include issues related to self harm or mental 
health) 

A planned programme of personal and social development behaviour management, requiring supported interaction with other 
children and adults in small groups throughout the day 

A consistent learning environment, with secure and explicit boundaries, and a particular emphasis on encouraging interaction 
with other pupils 

A planned programme of provisions outside of the school day requiring additional adult support 

P
age 100

https://staffnet.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


Costed Breakdown of Support for Student 

EHCP 
Outcome 

Provision Pupil Ratio How 
often 

By whom 
(Role) 

Total cost 
(Annual) 

Student will be 
able to share a 
piece of work 
he is proud of. 

 Student to have regular, specific praise linked to his work and to help develop his self-
esteem.

 Student to have regular opportunities to feedback and reflect with his key worker or
learning assistant in learning mentor time, his successes and attribute those to
himself.

 Student to share with home his achievement points received in school.

1:1 Support 
during 
registration 
and 1:1 
sessions in 
music 

2 hours 
per cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 

£1230 

Student will be 
able to name 
and describe 
his emotions 
to be able to 
share his 
feelings in a 
structured 
manner 

 Building positive relationships with Student is key to ensuring his success in his
learning environment, this should be considered a priority.

 Student to have regular opportunities to feedback and reflect with his key worker or
learning assistant in learning mentor time, his successes and attribute those to
himself.

 Key workers to be trained in supporting children with social and emotional needs and
to be supervised to ensure safe working practices.

 Student to have access to a consistent, reliable, predictable and secure learning
environment.  This could include access to visual timetables, direct instructions,
working in smaller groups, access to nurture style activities etc.

 Changes to Student’s curriculum should be carefully manage with Student and planed
in advance where possible.

 Staff working across the school will take a flexible and nurturing approach when
working with Student.

 Where possible, Student to have opportunities to work outside the classroom
for parts of lessons, as necessary.

 Student to have access to an agreed system in class whereby he can indicate to
adults that hr is finding things tricky. E.g. Help card

 Student to have access to a .b mindfulness course.

 Student to access ongoing support for his well being. E.g through TIC+

Student will be 
making 
expected 
progress in 
mathematics  

 Numerical questions with low literacy demands be provided at the start of lessons and
for new topics where possible.

 Student’s work and efforts to be positively praised.

 Work to be sent home if uncompleted.

 Where possible, Student to have opportunities to work outside the classroom for parts
of lessons, as necessary.

1:1 Support 
in maths 

1:5 Skills 
Plus 
intervention 

6 hours 
per cycle 

5 hours 
per cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 

Specialist 
Teacher 

£1845 

£792.50 

Appendix c

P
age 101



Student will be 
able to 
demonstrate 
his language 
skills in the 
classroom and 
fluently 
articulate and 
answer to 
more complex 
questions e.g. 
How/ Why 

 
 

 

 Trained and qualified adults to be available on a consistent and flexible basis to 
mediate language and social environment  

 Student to have access to deliberate, planned daily talk activities throughout his day to 
engage with across all learning area. Focus on Justifying, predicting defining, 
comparing, and contrasting and evaluating. 

 These key phrases to be used in the classroom to encourage real world discussion. 

 Structured open questions directed at Student in order to encourage expressive skills. 

 Adults to model and extend language throughout the day (1:1 5 -10 minutes as 
appropriate throughout the day). This might take place outside the classroom to 
enable Student to feel more comfortable. 

 Adults to encourage problem solving skills by mediating learning/ language and 
encouraging Student to think out answers rather than donating solutions for him. 

 Adults delivering intervention should model good quality fluent responses and 
encourage overlearning of skills by sharing key focus questions/concepts/vocabulary 
with other adults working with Student. 

 Student to be given opportunities to contribute ideas in a variety of ways; 
verbally in front of class, 1:1 with adult, with talking partner, in written form 
using white board.  

1:1 Support 
in class 
 
 
English 
Science 
Technology 
Geography 
History 
EPS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 hours 
per cycle 
 
 
6 hours 
5 hours 
4 hours 
3 hours 
3 hours 
3 hours 
 
Total:  
24hours 
a cycle 
 
 
 
 
 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£7380 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Student will be 
able to engage 
with learning 
and follow 
adult 
instructions 
 

 Student’s work and efforts to be positively praised. All adults to find something 
positive to comment on once a day. 

 Student’s teachers and learning assistants to speak to him every so often, at 
child level in a soft voice in order to build a relationship with him. 

 Opportunities for Student to work with his peers during some activities. 

 Differentiated tasks to be provided as appropriate. 

 Student to have access to printed notes or learning assistants to copy notes for 
him to reduce expectations of writing.  

 Student to be sat appropriately so he can easily see the teacher and board.  

 Staff to prompt Student when he has lost focused by using his name or through 
gestures.  

 Staff to provide sentence starters and structures for written work.  

 Learning assistants to help generate and scaffold ideas at the start of tasks.  

Student will be 
able to 
develop his 
ability to 
record his 
work in a 
variety of 
ways. 
 

 Student to access an agreed reward system linked to his attempts at producing written 
work. 

 Student to have access to alternative methods of recording. E.g. computer or other 
devices that allow Student to record his ideas. 

 Student to have daily opportunities to work with support outside the classroom 
reducing the pressure to perform in a whole class situation.  

 Student to have access to printed notes or learning assistants to copy notes for 
him to reduce expectations of writing.  

P
age 102



  Student to trial access to a laptop in English and if successful access to be 
provided in other curriculum areas.  

Student will be 
able to talk 
about a new 
friend in 
school 

 

 Student to have access to Gameszone at break and lunchtimes. Staff 
supervising to support peer interactions.  

 Seating plans to enable Student to sit near students he feels comfortable near.  

 Staff to support peer interactions in class, especially during group work. 

 PE staff to consider groupings. 

1:10 
(Approx) in 
Gameszone 
club at 
social times.  

10 hours 
per cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 
 

 

£307.50 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Total costed current support: 

 Weekly hours Annual cost Additional costs being requested 
(annual) 

1:1 Support during registration and 
1:1 sessions in music  

1 
1 

£615 

£615 
 

1:1 Support in maths 
1:5 Skills Plus intervention 

3 
2.5 

£1845 
£792.50 

 

1:1 Support in class 
English 
Science 
Technology 
Geography 
History 
EPS 

12 £7380  

1:10 (Approx) in Gameszone club at 
social times.  

5 £307.50  

TOTAL current expenditure  £11555 Additional funds: £1192 

Current EHCP funding  £10363  

 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Costed Breakdown of Support for Student 

EHCP Outcome Intervention Date 
started 

Pupil Ratio How 
often 

By whom 
(Role) 

Total cost 
(Annual) 

Student will be able to join 
peers during unstructured 
times 

 Engage Student in a social skills intervention on a 
weekly basis that focuses on being able to negotiate 
ideas, accept others’ ideas, manage conflict, share 
interests etc.   

 Work with Student on comic strip stories to help him to 
identify strategies he can use to engage in social 
situations and strategies to use when he finds the social 
situation too challenging.  

 Offer adult support during unstructured times to help 
Student initiate or accept interactions with peers.   

 Consider using a whole class approach in PSHE such 
as SEAL.   

 Social narratives &/or comic strip conversations can be 
used to develop/practice Student’s social skills  

 Give him time & space to calm down in safety also 
ensuring the safety of adults & peers  

 Adults to check that he does understand that he has 
caused upset/broken a school rule. 

 Although it may be school policy that both parties 
should be involved in the follow-up, this may be too 
over-whelming for Student  

 Consider if a room/space that might be used for a ‘time 
out’ if he is becoming overwhelmed, etc, should also be 
the space for a ‘time out’ if he has broken a school rule 
– this may be too confusing for him  

 Skills Plus- small group intervention to support English, 
Maths and Social Skills 

Jan 
2020 

1:1 Support 
during 
registration 
including in 
Nurture 
Group 1 day a 
week.  

5 hours 
per cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 

 

£1537.50 

Student can take it in turns 
when having a 
conversation with another 
person or a small group of 
children. 

 

 Pastoral Support intervention group 1 x a week  

 1:2 discussion group, modelling taking turns, listening 
and responding.  

 Visual prompt cards to be shared with Student on a 
daily basis related to basic listening skills.  

 Gamezone club at break and lunch 

 Skills Plus- small group intervention to support English, 
Maths and Social Skills 

Sept 
2019 

1:10 (Approx) 
in 
Gameszone 
club at social 
times.  

10 hours 
per cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 
 
 

£307.50 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 105



Student will be able to 
utilise strategies to help him 
to manage situations he 
perceives to be emotionally 
challenging.   

 Draw and Talk. The following can be explored in these 
support sessions, based on the Resiliency Scales 
(EMHP)  

 Sense of mastery: help Student to continue to draw on 
his strengths by asking questions such as “Tell me 
about the time when you did something really well and 
were proud of it”  

 Sense of relatedness: to build on creating trusting 
relationships. Give Student time to build relationships 
with peers through a buddy programme or social skills 
intervention (Gamezone); teach Student how to tolerate 
others who may want to play something different to him. 
This can be done through a social skills intervention, 
cartoon strip conversations. Explore observed 
difficulties for example, “They did not want to play your 
game and you felt sad. Can you draw/tell me/build what 
you have done in the past to help you join in, OR what 
might be a helpful thing to do if that happens again?” 
Use solution focused approaches to help seek what he 
feels he is able to do. Use “what if” questions to help 
Student think of alternative perspectives.  

 Sense of Emotional Reactivity. Explore with Student the 
type of situations that elevate his emotional sensitivity 
i.e., triggers for sadness, anger, feeling overwhelmed 
etc.; teach strategies to cope such as relaxation, 
mindfulness, asking for help.  

 Consider using a tool, such as the Boxall Profile, to 
measure progress over time and identify areas to 
continue to support Student.   

 Staff to be aware of the underlying reasons that Student 
may respond in a ‘negative’ way to certain 
environments/situations so they are able to: o 
appropriately & promptly prevent responses occurring 
where possible o appropriately & promptly ‘manage’ 
any impact, e.g. by stopping/reducing any escalation  

 Staff to continue to provide a supportive & empathetic 
caring learning environment that also allows Student to 
independently interact with his environment in an active 
way, make progress & achieve alongside his peers – if 
he is (di)stressed then he won’t be ‘ready to learn’  

See above Provision 

P
age 106



 If Student becomes anxious/upset then simplify the 
situation for him, e.g. keep language to a minimum, 
restrict his choices, so he feels less overwhelmed  

 Continue to ‘catch Student being good’ & give him a 
meaningful reward – this might be visual (thumbs up), 
verbal, concrete (sticker), tactile (high 5) - let him 
choose what he prefers  

 As relevant strategies should have time limit & an 
understanding that he will return to what he was doing, 
e.g. ‘Student I can see that you have a sad face, please 
can you …… for (length of time) 

 Skills Plus- small group intervention to support English, 
Maths and Social Skills 

 

Student can punctuate his 
written work using capital 
letters and full stops in the 
correct places when 
working independently 
 

 Adults to encourage Student to verbalise a sentence for 
writing and to record it remembering to start with a 
capital letter and to end with a full stop. 

 Responding to marking – teacher to highlight a piece of 
text which needs correcting or a ‘P’ to indicate that 
punctuation is missing.  

 Use of ‘now’ and ‘next’ vocabulary to indicate what 
Student needs to do and to encourage him to sustain 
his focus for a short length of time before going on to a 
short activity of his choosing.  

 Engage Student in a daily literacy intervention to 
support skills for writing such as grammar, spelling and 
punctuation.   

 Consider Student’s interests’ and incorporate them in to 
the intervention to make writing meaningful and useful 
to him.   

 Skills Plus- small group intervention to support English, 
Maths and Social Skills 
 

Sept 
2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 
2020 

1:3 in class 
support in 
maths 
 
1:1 in class 
support  
 
 
1:5 in Skills 
Plus 
intervention  

5 hours 
per cycle 
 
 
40 hours 
per cycle 
 
 
5 hours 
per cycle 
 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 
F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 
Specialist 
Teacher 
 

£512.50 
 
 
 
£12300 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Student can follow an 
instruction given by an 
adult, even when it is not 
on his agenda. 

 Praise when Student responds positively to a request 
by an adult.  

 On the advice of the clinical psychologist, when Student 
expresses that he does not want to engage with a task, 
distract him by doing an alternative activity before 
returning to the original task or make the activity a 
competition.  

See above Provision 

P
age 107



 Give notice of any change and explain the reason for 
the change.  

 Acknowledge to Student when he has done as he has 
been asked 

 Skills Plus- small group intervention to support English, 
Maths and Social Skills 
 

Student can focus on a 
curriculum task for 5 
minutes without adult 
intervention twice a day 

 

Ensure that Student  

 Understands the task  

 Knows the expectations of what needs to be completed 
in the given time frame  

 Has the support of visual prompts if needed  

 Is praised immediately following completion of the task   

 Use of ‘now’ and ‘next’ vocabulary to indicate what 
Student needs to do and to encourage him to sustain 
his focus for a short length of time before going on to a 
short activity of his choosing.  

 Acknowledge to Student when you have seen him 
focus and draw attention to the benefits that had to his 
work. Clearly label the skills you have seen to support 
his metacognition (knowledge of the skills that help him 
learn) 

 Pause and create suspense by looking around before 
asking questions to help gain Student’s attention 
without having to say his name and draw attention to 
him.  

 Signal that someone is going to have to answer a 
question about what is being said.  

 Ask a simple question (not even related to the topic at 
hand) to Student when his attention is beginning to 
wander.  

 Stand close to Student and touch him on the shoulder 
as you are teaching. Let him know beforehand that you 
will do this to help remind him to listen and focus.   

 Walk around the classroom as the lesson is 
progressing and tap the place in Student’s book that is 
currently being read or discussed to help draw his 
attention back to the correct part.   

 Alternate physical and mental activities, i.e. brain 
breaks with a physical activity.   

See above Provision 

P
age 108



 Structure in some guided daydreaming time or 
mindfulness.  

 Give simple, concrete instructions.  

 To provide opportunities for Student to share what it 
feels like to have difficulty focusing and listening and 
explore how he feels he can be helped and what he can 
do to help himself. When opportunities arise you could 
show you understand by saying, “I remember you told 
me you find it difficult to listen when…… Do you 
remember what you said you would try to do?”    

 Skills Plus- small group intervention to support English, 
Maths and Social Skills 
 

Student will be able to 
demonstrate reading 
comprehension by finding 
the relevant evidence from 
within the text to support 
his answers. 

 

 Adults working with Student to read his chosen reading 
book so that they are in a position to discuss it with him.  

 Student if possible to have 2 copies of the same book 
and one to stay at home and one to be kept in school. 

 Give Student time to process the information.  

 Ask Student open-ended questions to check his 
understanding of the text.  

 Focus on one text at a time.  

 Use a highlighter pen to highlight relevant information in 
the text.  

 To encourage Student to read for ten minutes everyday 
at home; school could advise on the Paired Reading 
approach to continue this support at home.   

 Continue to give Student the word and the meaning 
when he is unsure of it so he does not have to spend 
too much time looking the word up all the time. 
However do provide some opportunities for looking 
words up in a dictionary or on-line so he does not lose 
that skill.   

 Ensure Student understands the words he is reading, 
ask him what he thinks some words mean. To help and 
talk him through how to find out the meaning (such as 
asking or using a dictionary.   

 Ensure Student can decode words to help him read 
them correctly, errors in decoding make comprehension 
difficult.   

See above provision 

P
age 109



 Encourage Student to read a variety of texts, fiction and 
non fiction, magazines, comics etc., and talk with him 
about what he enjoyed, did not like, found interesting, 
did not understand.  

 Skills Plus- small group intervention to support English, 
Maths and Social Skills 

 

Total costed current support: 

 Weekly hours Annual cost 

1:1 In class support 20 per week £12300 

1:3 In class support (maths) 2.5 per week £512.50 

1:1 Skills Plus Intervention 2.5 per week (Alternative 
Pathway) 

£1537.50+ 

Gameszone  5 per week £307.50 

1:1 in Registration  2.5 per week £1537.50 

TOTAL 32.5 per week £16195 

 

P
age 110



Costed Breakdown of Support for Student 1 

EHCP 
Outcome 

Provision Date 
started 

Pupil Ratio How 
often 

By whom 
(Role) 

Total cost 
(Annual) 

I will have 
developed my 
conversation 
skills with 1 or 
2 adults or 
peers.  
 

 Work with an adult, talking through different situations and scenarios.  

 Social stories and narratives e.g. Comic Strip Conversations (a 
pictorial way of illustrating what someone else could be thinking and 
feeling within a variety of contexts) 

 Social skills groups once a week for 15 minutes.  

 Nurture approach twice a week for 30 minutes.  

 Restorative practice approach used daily in class.  

 Structured games for Student to participate in at break-times 

 Regular directed praise and class dojo points system as positive 
reinforcement 

 Class and school rules and expectation positively reinforced, modelled 
and visibly displayed 

 Daily access to the Nurture Room- ‘Safe Place’ 

Sept 
2020 

1:1 Support 
during 
registration 
with key 
worker and 
Nurture lead 
every day.   

5 hours 
per cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 

 

£1537.50 

I can use at 
least one 
strategy to 
calm down 
and stay safe 
when I am 
feeling angry.   
 

 Access to the nurture approach 

 Use specific praise to reinforce desirable behaviours. 

 Teach positive alternatives for negative behaviours. 

 Emotions cards 

 5 Step Program 

 Anger thermometer 

 Role play 

 Social Skills group work 

 Circle Time 

 Exit Card 

 Access to the Nurture Room- ‘Safe Place’ 

 Relaxation techniques 

 Sensory Calm Box 

 Adult modelling and commentaries to describe emotions and feelings 

 Use commentating as a tool for raising Student’s own awareness of 
how he is feeling 

 Consider using “Blob Tree books” or other Blob tree resources by Pip 
Wilson to help Student to evaluate his feelings / emotions at the 
beginning of a day/ session. This may be helpful for teacher’s 
evaluating his needs and anticipating when there are possible triggers 
for less desirable behaviour. 

 Access to the trim trail supported by an adult.  

Sept  
2020 

1:1 Nurture 
sessions to 
work on self-
esteem and 
reflection 
 
 

3 hours a 
cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£922.50 P
age 111



I will engage in 
an adult-led 
learning 
activity for 15 
minutes.  

 

 Short term targets and frequent rewards.  

 Remind Student of his rewards before starting work.  

 Review Student’s engagement immediately after an activity and give 
rewards immediately if appropriate.  

 Support from adults to ensure that Student is able to approach tasks 
with confidence 

 Short achievable tasks to complete. Reward effort. 

 Provide a structured and predictable timetable  

 Pre-teaching for new subjects including vocabulary. 

 Use Visual timetables/ schedules to prepare Student for daily tasks, 
improve his focus and to link in with expectations; this will help Student 
to remember each step of tasks set and persevere until the end of 
each session. This should incorporate activities which will give him a 
break as well as rewarding effort. 

 Identify rewards which will motivate Student and reinforce desired 
behaviours/outcomes. 

 Use of structured teaching approach such as an individual workstation 
to support sustained focus and concentration 

 Precision teaching activities-regular/daily. EG: number bonds/ times 
tables/ spelling/ word recognition to build confidence and reinforce 
knowledge and skills 

 Provide frequent opportunities for Student to take a break then re-
focus his attention – proprioceptive activities 

 Access to a “fidget toy” 

 Provide activities which guarantee engagement and success so that 
Student’s experiences at school become more positive. 

 Use timers. 

Sept 
2020 

1:1 Support 
in lessons: 
 
Maths 
English 
Science 
PE 
Technology 
Geography 
IT 
Art 
Drama 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1:1 Support 
for homework 
support 
 

 
 
 
6 hours 
6 hours 
5 hours 
1 hour 
4 hours 
3 hours 
2 hours 
2 hours 
2 hours 
 
Total:  
35 hours 
a cycle 
 
 
 
 
5 hours a 
cycle 
 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 

£10762.50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
£1537.50 
 

I will be able to 
consistently 
read, write and 
spell a range 
of high 
frequency 
words from the 
First 100 Word 
List.  
 

 Reinforcing what he has learned on a daily basis. 

 Using a creative/multi-sensory approach to spelling.  

 Precision Teaching approach with 10 minutes of daily practise of key 
words learnt to the point of fluency. 

 Daily pre-teaching vocabulary. 

 Literacy enrichment activities such as sharing a variety of genres of 
book for pleasure, including joke books, interest led text. 

 Rewards to enhance motivation to learn. 

 Scaffolding tasks: Provide Student with alternative ways of recording 
his ideas such as: 

 access to a scribe 

 talking tin tops (he will need training on how to use these effectively) 

 Writing frames to support tasks 

Sept 
2020 

1:1 English 
sessions for 
pre-teaching 
and reading 
support 

5 hours 
per cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 

£1537.50 

P
age 112



 ICT programmes/ apps  which provide word-banks and read back 
features such as “book creator” app or Comic Life 

 access to: 

 key word sheets/ word-banks/ word walls 

 story boards/ semantic dictionaries/ mind maps to support planning 

 ‘Fizzy’ programme to target hand strength for 15 minutes daily 

 A handwriting programme, such as ‘Write from the Start’ for 15 
minutes daily 

I need to be 
able to write a 
compound 
sentence 
independently 
 

 Encouragement word banks English Tool Kit peer support some 1:1 
individual specific intervention for sentence building.  

 Look in detail at sentence structure.  

 Nouns verbs adjectives punctuation.  

 Precision teaching.   

 Dancing Bears programme. 

See provision above 

I will be able to 
understand 
and accurately 
represent a 
range of 
calculations 
(addition/ 
subtraction/ 
multiplication 
and division) 

 

 Use visuals to support tasks  

 Break tasks down in to small manageable chunks providing clear 
explanation / modelling/ visual cues 

 Provide frequent opportunities for over-learning and pre-teaching. A 
precision teaching approach may be helpful for assessing small steps 
of progress and helping to set targets/next steps for learning  

 Use multi-sensory visual resources such as Numicon and Base 10 to 
support Student’s understanding of number concepts.  

 Numbershark 

Sept 
2020 

1:2 Maths 
sessions for 
pre-teaching 
and 
consolidation 

2 hours 
per cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 

 

£307.50 

I will be able to 
safely manage 
transitions and 
unstructured 
times 
independently. 

 Adult modelling of school expectations 

 Support to leave the classroom early and during unstructured times 

 Prompts to remember and follow the instructions of routines 

 Rewards 

Sept 
2020 

1:10 (Approx) 
in 
Gameszone 
club at social 
times.  

10 hours 
per cycle 

F Grade 
Teaching 
Assistant 
 
 

 

£307.50 
 
 
 
 

 
I need to make 
a successful 
transition to 
Chosenhill 
Secondary 
School 

 Additional visits to Chosenhill secondary School 

 Black Sheep secondary transition pack  
 

See above provision 

 
 
 

P
age 113



Total costed current support: 

 Weekly hours Annual cost Additional costs being requested 
(annual) 

1:1 Support during registration with key 
worker and Nurture lead every day.   

2.5 £1537.50  

1:1 Nurture sessions to work on self-
esteem and reflection 

1.5 £922.50 1:1 CBT sessions 1 hour per week for 
12 weeks 
£720 (Difference = +£105) 

1:1 Support in lessons: 
 
Maths 
English 
Science 
PE 
Technology 
Geography 
IT 
Art 
Drama 

 

17.5  £10762.50 

 
 

1:1 Support for homework support 

 
2.5 £1537.50  

1:1 English sessions for pre-teaching 
and reading support 

2.5 £1537.50 1:1 English Intervention 2 hours per 
week  
£4104 (Difference = +£2874) 

1:2 Maths sessions for pre-teaching and 
consolidation 

1 £307.50  

1:10 (Approx) in Gameszone club at 
social times.  

5 £307.50  

    

TOTAL current expenditure  £16912.50 Additional funds: £2979 

Current EHCP funding  £13438 Total additional funds 
required: £6435.50 

 

P
age 114



 
1. The attached workplan provides a guide for members of the items scheduled to be 

considered by the Forum at the meetings throughout 2022. 
 

2. The key priorities for the Schools Forum in 2022 are: 
 

2.1 Mainstream funding 
 To evaluate the impact of the National Funding Formula changes and to 

respond to Government consultations about future proposed changes.   
 To ensure that effective oversight of schools in deficit or at risk of deficit is 

maintained and that recovery plans are in place for all schools in deficit. 
 To make representations to government on education funding, as an individual 

Forum or as part of wider campaign. 
 

2.2 High Needs 
 To review the impact of key projects within the High Needs Strategy, 

particularly the approach to funding inclusion and early intervention.  
 To support design and implementation of a new approach to funding SEND 

through a working group. 
 To monitor spending and data trends. 
 To undertake a public consultation to gain feedback on potential options and 

approaches to developing a High Needs recovery plan. 
 

2.3 Early years 
 To review the childcare market and its impact on children, parents and the 
 school system. 
 To agree any changes to the early years funding model. 

 
2.4 Role and functions of the Forum 

To reassess the role and impact of the Forum in the light of its statutory 
responsibilities, current priorities in school funding and any developments in 
government guidance. 

 
3. Recommendation 

The Forum is asked to note the workplan for 2022.  
 

Gloucestershire Schools Forum Workplan 2022 

Schools’ Forum Date 13 January 2022 

Type of Decision For information 

Background Documents  None 

Author Philip Haslett – Head of Education Strategy and 
Development 

Purpose of Report To inform members of the items requiring the Forum’s input 

in 2022 

Key Recommendations To note the Schools Forum Workplan 2022 

Page 115

Agenda Item 9



Schools Forum Workplan 2022 

Meeting date Item Purpose Content/Issue Lead officer 

Thursday 13 January 
 

 

Gloucestershire 
County Council 
Budget 
Consultation 
2022/23 
 
Funding 
Formula  
2022/23 
 
 
Early Years 
Funding 
 
High Needs 
 
 
F40 
 
 
Schools Forum 
Workplan 
 

Information 
 
 
 
 
 
Decision 
 
 
 
 
Decision 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Decision 
 
 

Consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
Decisions on the local funding formula for 
mainstream funding.  Commentary on funding 
announcements for 2021/22. 
 
 
Agree the funding formula for 2022/23. 
 
 
Update on high needs. 
 
 
Update only – may be verbal. 
 
 
Workplan for 2022. 
 
 

Suzanne Hall 
 
 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett/Neil 
Egles 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 

Wednesday 30 March  
 

School 
Improvement 
Funding 
 
Agree the use of 
Early Years 
balances 

Decision To consider the proposed changes to the Local 
Authority School Improvement Funding. 
 
 
To consider how any retained balances for Early 
Years funding should be used. 

Philip Haslett 

Thursday 16 June Outturn and 
school balances 

Information 
 

Spending against DSG & DSG balances. 
 

Suzanne Hall/Neil 
Egles 

P
age 116



2021/22 
 
High Needs 
 
 
F40 
 
 
Meeting dates 
2023 

 
 
Information 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information  
 

 
 
To approve the High Needs budget for 2022-23 
and review and approve the 5-year plan.    
 
Update only – may be verbal. 
 
 
To note the meeting dates in 2023. 

 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Jo Bolton 

Thursday 15 
September 

 
School Funding 
2023/24 
 
High Needs 
 
 
Capital  
 
 
 
 
F40 
 
 

 
Decision 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information  
 
 
 
 
Information 

 
To consider the formula for 2023/24, de-
delegations etc. 
 
To receive an update on high needs and progress 
of the public consultation.   
 
To receive an update on capital funding 
allocations and expenditure, progress on major 
capital projects and funding priorities for 2023/24. 
 
 
Update – may be verbal. 

 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Gareth Vine 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett 

P
age 117



Thursday 10 November School funding 
2023/24 
 
 
 
High Needs 
 
 
F40 

Decision 
 
 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information 

To assess the impact of any additional funding 
announcements/details for 2023/24. 
To receive an update on high needs and agree 
approach to 2023/24 budget (based on 
consultation outcome). 
 
 
 
Update – may be verbal. 

Philip Haslett 
Suzanne Hall/ 
Neil Egles 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Philip Haslett 

Working Group 
 
Monday 7 February 
2022 
(Further dates to be 
arranged) 

High Needs 
Budget 

Consultation and 
design 

To play an active role in informing, guiding and 

implementing the strategic aims identified in the 

High Needs Strategy: 

 an inclusive education system characterised 

by effective early intervention and supported 

by a skilled workforce able to access specialist 

support 

 high quality specialist provision available 

locally for those that need it 

 a sustainable budget. 

Philip Haslett 
 
 

 

P
age 118


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Action sheet 11 November 2021
	Schools Forum HTST Briefing Dec 2021
	Notes of the Consultation School Improvement Grant meeting - 9 December 2021

	6 Gloucestershire County Council Budget Consultation 2022/23
	7 Dedicated Schools Grant 2022/23
	8 High Needs
	CL Banding Document Draft V3 (12.07.21)a
	SP Banding Document Draft V3 (12.07.21)b
	SEMH Banding Document Draft V3 (12.07.21)c
	CI Banding Document Draft V3 (10.12d
	Provision Map - SEMH Band 1f
	Provision Map - SEMH Band 2g
	Provision Map - CL Band 3

	9 Schools Forum Workplan 2022

